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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFRBES

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the Group’s consolidated financial results for
the 2022 Financial Year and give an overview of the Group’s strategy and business
outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

All through the last fiscal year, the Group was confronted with the surge in the
production costs due to the inflation of raw materials, chemicals, fuels and others. As
customers became cautious to the economic environment, they decided to reduce
their inventories accumulated from previous seasons. The demand for premium
fabrics dropped, and the competition in the market was drastically intensified.

Under such circumstances, the management team and the employees firmly joined
hands and, as always, tackled the unstable and changing business situations in a
prudent and proactive manner.

During the year, the Group has strengthened its market-focused innovation capability.
We applied market-driven approach to satisfy the needs of customers who are looking

for new functional fabrics with environmental awareness.

To achieve sustainable growth by enhancing the Group's human, environmental,
technological and social capital in the long term, the Group extended the activities by
its corporate social responsibility committee. It oversees projects related to corporate
responsibility, such as setting and controlling the sustainable targets to address to
stakeholders’ concern. Details of the corporate social responsibility and sustainability
matters are described in the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

We strive to stay ahead of the fierce competition through the focus on the following
strategies:

(i) Expanding the customer bases by development of high quality functional fabrics;

(i) Saving costs and improving efficiency by disciplined budgetary control;

(iii) Upholding the corporate social responsibility by investing in greener production
methods;

(iv) Pursuing for medium to long term organic growth by reinforcing production
bases and setting up a new factory in Vietnam.

We are sharpening our competitive edge by increasing the ratio of our sustainable
merchandise. We will continue to provide premium textiles and services in a flexible
and highly efficient manner to cater for customers better.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to express my sincere appreciation to our
customers, business partners, suppliers, stakeholders and bankers for their continuous
support to the Group during the period, | sincerely hope our employees will be able
to grow together with the Group, enjoy balanced life, and realise their potential in the
Group.

I' would also thank our shareholders for their continuous support and confidence in
the Group during the past year.

On behalf of the Board
Masaru OKUTOMI
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2022

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHBEE

&
FAABRKREEFRROBHEMANES %
BEH  HER  BOERERRITRULH
REARBEOFESR  AARLAHEZRM
METREASE KK ZXFENE
o YESEERME -

RATBHBEFINEREBE - FHAEE
MR E S MEE -

AREER®
TE
RER

B 2022F 6238

ERFHERERAT | 2021/2022 F5;

i A«A Y



o4

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS )

EERBHWED T

OVERVIEW

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of textiles products, including high quality cotton and
synthetic knitted fabrics.

Revenue

During the year under review, revenue of the Group was approximately HK$6,066.3
million (2021: approximately HK$5,384.9 million) representing an increase of 12.7% as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2021, due to increase of average sales price
by 9.6%.

Revenue generated from sales of goods from different geographical locations (as
determined by where the products were delivered to) is set out in note 5 to the
financial information of the Company on page 106.

Other incomes comprising, among others, sales of scrap materials and utilities income
are set out in note 22 to the financial information of the Company on page 140.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales of the Group was approximately HK$5,290.0 million (2021: approximately
HK$4,523.2 million) representing an increase of 17.0% as compared with the year
ended 31 March 2021 due to inflation of raw materials and fuel cost.

Profit

During the year under review, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was approximately HK$572.7 million (2021: approximately HK$721.5 million)
representing a decrease of 20.6% as compared with last year. If the one-time other
gain of approximately HK$100.5 million arising from disposal of two properties and a
carpark in Hong Kong in comparable period is excluded, it represents a decrease of
approximately 7.9% in profit.

Selling and distribution expenses
During the year under review, selling and distribution expenses including impairment
loss on trade receivables slightly decreased to HK$73.1 million (2021: HK$86.3 million).

Administration expenses
The administration expenses slightly decreased to HK$178.6 million (2021: HK$179.7
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)
BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Finance costs
Finance costs increased by approximately 50.7% to HK$22.0 million (2021: HK$14.6
million) mainly due to increase in net exchange loss on revaluation of USD bank loan.

Trade receivables and trade payables turnover days
Trade receivables turnover days was 54 days while trade payables turnover days was
45 days.

Income tax

The Group recorded an income tax expense of approximately HK$66.8 million during
the year under review (2021: HK$103.0 million). The average effective tax rate of
the Group was approximately 10.3% which was lower than last year (2021: 12.3%)).
The reduction in effective tax rate was mainly attributed to the benefit of PRC tax
incentives resulted from research and development projects.

Assets

As at 31 March 2022, the total assets of the Group were HK$5,944.2 million (2021:
HKS$5,211.4 million) representing an increase of approximately 14.1%. The total assets
comprised non-current assets of HK$2,124.4 million (2021: HK$2,068.7 million) and
current assets of HKS$3,819.8 million (2021: HK$3,142.7 million). Such increase was a
result of increase in trade and bills receivables, and cash and bank balances.

Key financial ratios are set out below:

Gross Profit Margin® EF=O
Return on Equity® B EHE

Interest Coverage Ratio® FMEEBEL RO

Notes:

(1) The calculation of Gross Profit Margin is based on gross profit divided by revenue and
multiplied by 100%.

(2) The calculation of Return on Equity is based on profit for the year divided by total
equity and multiplied by 100%.

(3) The calculation of Interest Coverage Ratio is based on profit before interest expenses
on bank loans and tax expenses divided by interest expenses on bank loans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREWAED

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Liquidity and financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2022, the Group was in a net cash position of HK$(34.8) million (2021:
HK$186.7 million). The reduction was due to increase in accounts receivables, arising
from increase of sales revenue and decrease in accounts payable as payment terms
resume to normal.

The Group's principal source of working capital was cash generated from sales of its
products, supplemented with bank borrowings and a shareholder’s loan contributed
by our joint venture partner for the Vietnam subsidiary.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had total cash and bank balances of HK$1,545.1
million (2021: HK$957.5 million) comprising of HK$132.2 million, the equivalent
of HKS$1,093.3 million denominated in USS, the equivalent of HK$309.6 million
denominated in RMB, the equivalent of HK$4.6 million denominated in VND and the
equivalent of HK$5.4 million denominated in other currencies. The cash and bank
balances was to finance the Group's working capital and capital expenditure plans.

The Group had bank loans of HKS$1,453.7 million (2021: HK$645.4 million) and
shareholder’s loan of HK$126.2 million (2021: HKS125.4 million) contributed by our
joint venture partner to the Vietnam subsidiary. The said shareholder’s loan was of
equity nature and was not repayable within one year. The Group did not pledge any of
its assets for bank borrowing (2021: Nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group's total assets amounted to HK$5,944.2
million (2021: HK$5,211.4 million) representing an increase of 14.1%. Non-current
assets and current assets were HK$2,124.4 million and HK$3,819.8 million respectively.
The above assets were financed by current liabilities of HK$2,261.7 million, non-
current liabilities of HK$252.0 million and equity attributable to Shareholders of
HK$3,419.1 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Capital expenditure and capital commitment

The Group had been adopting cautious measures and fine-tuned its capital
expenditure in response to the market demand. During the year under review, total
capital expenditure decreased by 39.6% to HK$122.1 million (2021: HK$202.3 million)
which was mainly used to purchase machinery and to finance the environmental
protection projects of Panyu factory and Vietnam factory.

Details on the right-of-use assets, property, plant and equipment are set out on pages
109 to 112 of this annual report.

Details of capital commitments are set out in note 31 to the financial information of
the Company on page 151 of this annual report.

Key liquidity or leverage ratios:

Current Ratio® E R @
Quick Ratio® SHREN RO
Gearing Ratio® BAREEL KO
Debt to Equity Ratio?” BEERL R
Notes:

(4) The calculation of Current Ratio is based on current assets divided by current liabilities.

(5) The calculation of Quick Ratio is based on current assets minus inventories divided by
current liabilities.

(6) The calculation of Gearing Ratio is based on total borrowings and bills payable divided
by total equity multiplied by 100%.

(7) The calculation of Debt to Equity Ratio is based on total liabilities divided by total
equity multiplied by 100%.

EEEFREDT

WE(E)

$¥BREMKEE(E)

EAEIREREAE
AEE-—HRINEENEE  WIRETSH
EXRMBAELAHY -HREBFE  A5H
BB EAFATBIERL 3060 E 12218 EE
L (20215 20238 AET) - TZANE
HBERELFEENE R SR EERREE
WES o

FREEAEARYE BERIBNFBH
RAREREI09BEEFE 1128 ©

ERAEORERNEFRE 15 HOAL
R ARIHI 3 -

TERBESRERLR:

As at 31 March

M3A31H
2022 2021
2022 & 2021 4F
1.7 1.9
1.1 12
46.6% 23.6%
73.3% 55.4%

@ RBLEDRRBEERARBDAGENE

6) RPBLULENRRBHEERFERARD A
(RGN

(6) BABBELRTIZBEE RENZER N
MR EEE A TIA100%EHE -

(7) BEERLRIZABRER AR EE
BFEAI100%TE -

EXGEBZERBRAT | 2021/2022 £




10

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREFREST

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Risk Management on Foreign Exchange and Interest Exposure

The Group had been exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures with respect to the US Dollars, Renminbi and Vietnamese Dongs primarily.
The Group managed its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and
monitoring its foreign exchange exposures. The Group would hedge against certain of

its exposures in order to reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong, PRC, Macau and Vietnam. Except for certain
cash and bank balances and certain inter-company receivables denominated in
foreign currencies, transactions were generally conducted in a functional currency of
the respective group entity. The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets

and liabilities was considered by the Directors to be minimal.

The Group had been using forward foreign currency contracts to hedge part of its
foreign exchange risk. These forward foreign currency contracts did not qualify for
hedge accounting and were accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

Lease Commitments
Details of the lease commitments are set out on page 151 of this annual report.

Pledge of Assets
No assets were pledged to obtain financing as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022
respectively.

Segmental Information
Details of segmental information are set out in note 5 to the financial information of
the Company on page 106.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and
Joint Ventures

There was no material acquisition or disposal of the Company’s subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2021: Nil).

Events Subsequent to the Period
There was no significant event undertaken by the Company or by the Group after 31
March 2022 and up to the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL REPORTING

The Group has been sparing no effort in the investment of environmental protection,
energy consumption and reduction of wastage, and the achievements were well
recognized. During the year under review, the Company’s subsidiary in Panyu had
received the following awards:

Awarded as "2020 CKIA Advanced Unit in Group Standardisation Work” by the China
Knitting Industrial Association (“CKIA") in May 20217,

Graded as an Environmental Integrity Enterprise (Green Card Enterprise) by
Guangzhou Municipal Ecological Environment Bureau in June 2021%

Awarded as “List of Clean Production Enterprises in Provincial Level 2020" by the
Department of Industry and Information Technology of Guangdong Province and
Department of Ecology and Environment of Guangdong Province in July 2021%,

Awarded as “2019-2020 Advanced Enterprise in Energy Efficiency (Water Efficiency)
Benchmarking in the Textile Industry of Guangdong Province” by Guangdong Textile
Association in September 20217,

The project of “Key Technology Research on Carbon Emission Evaluation and Control
of Major Enterprises in Textile Printing and Dyeing Industry” was awarded as the
Second Class Award by China National Textile And Apparel ("CNTAC") in December
20217,

PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

During the year under review, the Company contributed to develop innovative
products to meet the market needs. The Company has received multiple awards for its
new products including:

A superfine lightweight thermal fabric for underwear was awarded the certificate of
“China Functional Knitted Products Fashion Trends 2021/2022 - Recommendation on
Comfortable Product Unit” by CKIA in October 2021%.

An eco-friendly recycled free-cut nylon fabric for underwear was awarded the
certificate of “China Functional Knitted Products Fashion Trends 2021/2022 -
Recommendation on Comfortable Product Unit" by CKIA in October 2021*.

A leisure shirt fabric was awarded the certificate of “China Functional Knitted Products
Fashion Trends 2021/2022 - Recommendation on Market Applicable Product” by CKIA
in October 2021%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREWAED

PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT (Cont'd)

Seven products (polyester spandex polar fleece, polyester cotton-like plated jersey,
Tencel plaited jersey, CVC elastic sandwich-like Interlock, Sorona icy fabric with anti-
microbial function, cotton Sorona single jersey (Sorona Plus), polyester cotton-
like plated jersey) were accredited as “ Public List of Green Design Products” by the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of China in December 2021%.

Awarded “Textile and Apparel Brand Competitiveness Enterprises of China in 2022" by
CNTAC in May 2022°.

#  The English translated version is for reference only. If there is any inconsistency
between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 4,697 full-time employees (2021: 4,933).
There was no significant change in the Group's remuneration policy. The Group’s
remuneration package for its employees included salary, bonuses, allowances
and retirement benefits based on the performance, skills and knowledge of each
employee. The Group also provided additional benefits to its employees, for instances
subsidized accommodation and meals for those working in production facilities,
accident and medical insurance, etc.

The Group will continue to provide regular trainings and competitive remuneration
package to the employees in order to enhance their incentive and motivation to work.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK14 cents (2021: HK22 cents) per
share for the 2022 Financial Year, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM. Together with an interim dividend of HK21 cents (2021: HK22
cents) per share, the total dividend for the 2022 Financial Year amounted to HK35
cents (2021: HK44 cents) per share.

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

The financial year ended 31 March 2022 was characterized by inflation in production
cost. As many other textiles mills, the cost of yarns, fuel cost, chemicals, dye stuffs
and labour have increased sharply at an unexpected speed. Although the cost of
certain raw materials may be stabilized in the coming months, the cost is unlikely to
be reduced to the level of two years ago. Under the situation where many customers
have tried to remain competitive by minimizing the increment of their cost, in
particular, price spent on fabrics, it will take some time for the Group to adjust the
price of fabrics for new orders to catch up with the cost increase.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 12021 /2022 Annual Report
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK (Cont'd)

In the last fiscal year, customers have increased their inventory level in response to
supply chain disruptions. We believe the overall demand of high quality fabrics may
decrease slightly in the coming year, due to inventory adjustment.

There is a trend of increasing interest rate for some key currencies. Although, the rising
interest may affect our cost of borrowing, the Group has adopted flexible treasury
management and will stabilize the cost of borrowing by working with financial
institutes which offer most preferable terms.

The Group will cope with the challenges by putting more efforts on saving cost
by enhancing efficiency, exploring more energy savings possibilities and reducing
wastage as well as developing new products, so as to improve its profit margin in the

coming year.

The Group has been working closely with our customers such as sports, casual, and
intimate apparel, putting relentless effort on new product development for higher
value added. For instance, environmental friendly and innovative functional fabrics
are our areas of focus. In fact, seven products of the Panyu factory were accredited
as “Public list of Green Design Products” by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of China in December 2021.

The direct impact of 2019 novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19") on the Group was
minimal during the financial year. The Group has been actively following the polices
and measures required under the laws and precaution measures are constantly
applied. There was no suspension of production in the factories operated by the
Group during the financial year under review. The Group will continue to adopt
suitable measures to keep the risk of COVID-19 to minimal.

As a business partner of our customers who are committed to the carbon neutral
by 2050, the Group constantly explores low-emission measures to reduce carbon
emission and to mitigate global warming. We are tackling earnestly the issue of
reducing water consumption through increasing the usage of recycled water. We
have been using biodegradable fibers and other environmentally friendly materials
in our products. The sludge produced from wastewater treatment is upcycled as
biofuel and serves as an alternative source of energy. We will increase the use of other
renewable energies to reduce emissions.

The Group’s plan of expanding production scale by establishing a new factory in
Vietnam is underway and is expected to be completed by the end of 2023. With
higher production capacity to cater for the needs of customers, the Group's revenue
generating capacity will surely be further enhanced.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERRREEARGN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI, aged 64, joined the Group on 1 July 2019 as executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of the Board. With effect from 1 October 2021, Mr.
Okutomi was re-designated from the Vice Chairman of the Board to the Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Mr. Okutomi continues
to serve as an executive Director, a member of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Nomination Committee. Moreover, Mr. Okutomi is a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group and a non-executive director of Teejay Lanka Plc.,
an associated company of the Group, whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock
Exchange in Sri Lanka. Mr. Okutomi is responsible to lead the management team
and oversee the overall production and operation of the Group, providing corporate
directions and formulating business strategies of the Group. Mr. Okutomi holds a
bachelor's degree in law from Hitotsubashi University in 1981 and after his graduation,
he joined the merchandise sales department (textiles) of Toray. Toray is a company
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
He also held various senior positions including the managing director of Toray
Industries (South China) Co., Ltd. and Toray Industries (H.K.) Ltd. from May 2016 to 30
June 2019, and the deputy managing director of Toray Industries (China) Co., Ltd. from
May 2016 to 30 June 2019, and has been given the title as senior director in Toray. Mr.
Okutomi has extensive experience in management of textiles business.

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 72, co-founded the Group in 1997 and has been appointed
as a Director of the Company since 2004. He was an executive Director and the
Chairman of the Board since 20 May 2005 and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group since 1 July 2015. With effect from 1 October 2021, Mr. Wan was re-designated
from the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group to the
Vice Chairman of the Board. Mr. Wan continues to serve as an executive Director, a
member of the Remuneration Committee and a member the Nomination Committee.
Moreover, he is a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Wan is responsible to
facilitate the implementation of the Group’s business strategies and assist the
Chairman in supervising the Group's overall operations. Mr. Wan obtains a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Chemical Engineering from National Cheng Kung University in
Taiwan. He has over 50 years of experience in the textiles industry.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. TOU Kit Vai, aged 59, joined the Group in 2013 and became Chief Financial
Officer of the Group on 1 April 2014. Mr. Tou has been appointed as an executive
Director from 1 July 2017. Moreover, he is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group and a non-executive director of Teejay Lanka Plc., an associated company
of the Group, whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka.
Mr. Tou has extensive experience in factory operations, financial management,
project management and ERP system. He is responsible for overseeing the corporate
financial management, information technology and back office operations. Mr. Tou
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He was an executive director of a
company listed on the Stock Exchange during the period from 2007 to 2012.

Mr. Kyuichi FUKUMOTO, aged 51, joined the Group in February 2022 as an executive
Director. Moreover, he is a director of various subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Fukumoto
is responsible for the Group's budgetary control and setting up of key performance
indicators for fulfilling corporate goal and targets. Mr. Fukumoto is leading the project
of setting up a new factory in Vietnam. Mr. Fukumoto graduated from the faculty of
law in Tokyo University in 1995 and has been an employee of Toray Industries, Inc.
since 1995. Toray is a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange and is a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Prior to joining the Group, he was a senior staff of the
Fibers & Textiles Strategic Business Planning Department of Toray from May 2017 to
March 2019 and was an Assistant General Manager of the said Department since April
2019 to end of 2021. Mr. Fukumoto has extensive experience in the textiles industry.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 74, joined the Group in 1997 and became a non-executive
director in 2007. He has been re-designated as an executive Director and appointed
as the Vice Chairman of the Group from 1 July 2017. From 1 June 2019, Mr. Lau has
been re-designated as non-executive Director of the Company and ceased to act as
the Vice Chairman of the Board. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong Technical
College). He has over 45 years of experience in the textiles industry, and he was the
Chairman of Group 3 (Dyeing and Finishing) of Federation of Hong Kong Industries.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERERERASEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 70, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2007. Dr. Chan has been the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee since 2007. He was the former chairman and is
currently the non-executive director of Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a Hong
Kong listed company which he joined in 1984, and has considerable experience in
planning and management. Dr. Chan has also been an independent non-executive
director of Starlite Holdings Limited since 1993, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International)
Limited since 2010, Modern Dental Group Limited since 2015 and Human Health
Holdings Limited since 2016, and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited since 2007, the abovementioned companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Dr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts, a Master degree in City
Planning from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree
in Business Administration and is also bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnan
University. He is currently the adviser of the Quality Tourism Services Association, the
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing. Dr. Chan was the former
chairman of Business Enterprise Management Centre of The Hong Kong Management
Association and was also a member of the advisory committee of the department of
management and marketing of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 73, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2007. Mr. Ng has been the Chairman of Nomination
Committee, a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee since 2007. Mr. Ng has over 35 years of senior management experience
in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng was a director and a member of the
executive committee for Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited, a Thailand
listed company. He was an independent director of China Digital TV Holding Co.
Ltd., a New York Stock Exchange listed company and a non-executive director of
HKC International Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company. He was the chief
executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited. He was the chief executive officer of
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company
and the President of PCCW Mobility Services Limited. Mr. Ng was the Honorary
Advisor of the Communications Association of Hong Kong. Mr. Ng was a member
of the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee (D21SAC) and an appointed member
of Communications Authority, an independent statutory body established under
the Communications Authority Ordinance in April 2012. Mr. Ng graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor of Business and

Administration.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 65, has been appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2007. Mr. Sze has been the Chairman of
Audit Committee, a member of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee since 2007. Mr. Sze has senior management experience
in the private and investment banking industry serving high net worth clients and
institutions. Mr. Sze is an independent non-executive director of Wecon Holdings
Limited since 27 February 2019, which a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He was the managing director, head of China and Hong Kong of
Julius Baer Bank; the chief executive officer of EFG Asset Management (Hong Kong)
Limited for Asia Pacific Region; the managing director, head of investment of Citi
Wealth Management for Asia Pacific region; the chief executive officer of AsiaPacific
for Barclays Wealth and an executive director in the private clients division at
Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master of Business from the
University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Fellow of CPA Australia.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHAN Sau Yee, is the Company Secretary. Ms. Chan is a fellow member of The
Chartered Governance Institute (CGl) and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (HKCGI) respectively. She has obtained dual qualifications as Chartered
Governance Professional and Chartered Secretary from CGl and HKCGI. She has also
obtained a Bachelor Degree in Economics and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from the University of Hong Kong. She also holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the
University of London. Ms. Chan has ample corporate secretarial experience gained
from international law firms, listed companies and large private groups. Ms. Chan
joined the Company in November 2017.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GAO Jinhua, aged 56, is the Chief Operating Officer (Vietnam) and a director of
some of the subsidiaries of the Company who has worked for the Group for more
than 20 years and is experienced in operational and production management. Prior
to taking up the current position, Mr. Gao has been the General Manager of the
Production Department. Mr. Gao graduated from the Shanghai Normal University,
major in Chemistry in 1988.

Mr. ZHAO Qizhi, aged 56, is the Chief Operating Officer (PRC) and a director of
some of the subsidiaries of the Company who joined the Group in 1997 and has
over 25 years of experience in the textiles industry. He is responsible for managing
the engineering department of the factories. Mr. Zhao holds a Bachelor's Degree in
Mechanical Engineering from Shanghai Jiaotong University, China.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERERERASEN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Mr. LAI Chi Man, aged 56, is the Chief Marketing Officer and a director of some of the
subsidiaries of the Company who joined the Group in 1998 and has over 25 years of
experience in the textiles industry. Mr. Lai holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Textile
and Clothing Marketing from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He also obtained
a Master of Business Administration Degree (The Kellogg — HKUST EMBA Program)
awarded by Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University of Science and

Technology jointly.

Mr. TSANG Sian Chung, Hubert, aged 45, is the Chief Information Officer and a
director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in 2010 and now
leads the Group's digitalization initiatives. Mr. Tsang has over 25 years of experience
in the IT field, ranging from performing academic research on high performance
computing to building large scale Internet websites to building and maintaining
enterprise shared services. Mr. Tsang holds an MBA degree and Bachelor of Computer
Science, both from the University of Maryland, College Park.

Mr. Mitsuru KAWABATA, aged 62, is the General Manager (HR & Administration)
who joined the Group in 2020. Mr. Kawabata holds a Bachelor of Laws Degree from
Doshisha University. Upon his graduation from Doshisha University, Mr. Kawabata
joined Toray in 1984. He has extensive business development experiences in fibres,
fabrics, and garment as well as general management experience. Prior to joining the
Group, he was the managing director of Toray Ultrasuede Marketing, Inc. a subsidiary
of Toray.

Mr. Masanari MURAKAMI, aged 53, is the General Manager (Marketing) who joined
the Group in 2021. Upon his graduation from Faculty of Law, Kobe University in 1991,
Mr Murakami joined Toray. Mr Murakami has worked as a knit textile salesman over 15
years in Japan and Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, he was a director of Toray

Industries (H.K.) Ltd. and was responsible for textiles business and garment business.

Mr. Hiroyuki MATSUDA, aged 55, is the General Manager (Engineering) who
joined the Group in 2020. Mr. Matsuda is responsible for managing the engineering
department of the factories in China. Mr. Matsuda holds a Master Degree from
Graduate School of Letters of Kansai University, Japan. Prior to joining the Group,
he was a manager of Toray Industries, Inc. and has extensive experience in the
management of machinery, plant and equipment of factories.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Mr. CHUNG Chi Shing, aged 58, is the Assistant General Manager (Production
Technology) and a director of a subsidiary of the Company who joined the Group
in 1998 and has been serving for 24 years. He is responsible for dyeing and finishing
technology, fabric development, procurement of yarns, dyes and chemicals (DCA). Mr.
Chung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Textile Chemistry,
with over 30 years of experience in textiles industry. He is a holder of Chartered

Colourist granted by the Society of Dyers and Colourists.

Mr. WANG Sijie, aged 51, is the Assistant General Manager (Dyeing and Finishing) and
a director of a subsidiary of the Company who joined the Group in 1997. Mr. Wang is
responsible for the management of dyeing and finishing factory. Mr. Wang graduated
from the Hunan University, major in chemistry in 1994. Mr. Wang is a professorate
senior engineer and a holder of master degree. He is the Vice President of Guangzhou
Textile Engineering Society and a member of expert and technical committee of China
Knitting Industry Association (EMN#1 & TIE2 € BEEREFREAS B I XS
EXRHME B GZE E) Mr. Wang was awarded as outstanding chief engineer by
China Knitting Industries Association and technical innovation award by China Textile

Engineering Society.

Mr. Hidetoshi SUZUKI, aged 54, is the General Manager (Innovative Merchandise
Development) and he joined the Group as General Manager (Research and
Development) in 2021. Mr. Suzuki has over 30 years of experience in textiles and
related production technology development. Upon his graduation with a Bachelor’s
Degree of Engineering from Yamagata University, he started his career in textiles
industry with Toray in 1990. Prior to joining the Company, he has extensive experience
and had worked in laboratories in Japan, China, and USA respectively, such as Du
Pont-Toray Co., Ltd., Toray Fiber Research Center (China) and DuPont de Nemours, Inc.
(USA).

Mr. LAU Tak Ho Kevin, aged 48, is the Assistant General Manager (Finance, Human
Resources Management & Administration) who joined the Company in 2013. Mr. Lau is
mainly responsible for group finance, human resources, administration, procurement
management in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Mr. Lau graduated with Eng (Hons.)
and MBA degree in Development & Industrialisation from the University of Liverpool
in the United Kingdom and a Postgraduate Certificate in Professional Accounting
from the City University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of Institute of Public
Accountants in Australia. Prior to joining the Group, he had worked in an international
accounting firm and various listed companies. He has extensive working experiences
in finance, cost control, human resources & administration and procurement
management.

Mr. CHAN Kam Yuen, aged 54, is the Assistant General Manager (Sales) who joined
the Group in 1998 and has been serving for 24 years. Mr. Chan graduated from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry, with
over 30 years of experience in textiles industry.

EENEREBASHN

BEREBAE(E)

EER KK, - 5875% - BIAAKIE (i) RAR
A —HEMEBARZEE  R1998F AR
B ESRBART2UF - HEERER
fit - MR AEARDR 2R R EEREE
(DCA) ~ B ERENEBIE T RBHBILE
B HEHBERBR0OFLR -FiIFER
B 2 8 5K & (Society of Dyers and Colourists)
R ARENERNER o

ERERE 515K BIAAKE (RE) RAR
A-HMEBRARZES N1997 FMAKRSE
cERARBTERAREM - EERAER19%
FEENRBRASCIIESE  A—FIF
SR TIZAD - FAB TR - AR IMA &
TREREGIHEER  TATEHETEHS
ERRMEBEGZE - FRERPEGFET
EXpeTRESLITREMAETEHHTE
BB Ria ] -

BAREBEE  s4px 0 QLR (BIFTARA
) R2021 FIMAREE - E R EEK
B (ARFAE) - RAREEESHREEE
ERMAEESEEABB0FLR - {EILTE
ARBREVHNEIREELBM0E 80K %E
ER1990FE AT Toray EE A= -
MARRBR  BREFEELHR L&
£ Du Pont-Toray Co,, Ltd., Toray Fiber Research
Center (China) &2 Du Pont de Nemours, Inc.
(USAEHHRE-HSAERETH -

BIBESLE 485 BIBERE (BE - AN
BREERITH) » R2013FMAKRRE -
RIAETEAEAEBURE - ANER 17
BREESEPENDNREEE -2 EEE
E¥REEFYEAS YRS IRESELR
ITEEE(IXERER)BLIEMN  -TEE
B M ASNEEESBREEE 2%
EAERMNALSHABEZEREE - 1
MAREER > BAELR—MEE S
EBRMREZHEEM AR TIE - HEMTE - 5K
AIEEH  ADNER TR - RREEESR
BlEEE LT TIEER -

BREFREE 5457 BB (BHE) R
1998 FINAAREE  E5 R A AE 24 F o
BREAEENEBE T XSS EBLBILE
BENUR EHBERBE0FLR -

EXGEBZERBRAT | 2021/2022 £

19



20

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the 2022 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textiles products,
including high quality cotton and synthetic knitted fabrics.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the 2022 Financial Year by
geographical locations of business operations is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group during the year and discussions on its future developments are
provided in the section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis”in this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, business and prospects might
be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The followings were the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group for the 2022 Financial Year. There might
be other risks and/or uncertainties in addition to those outlined below which were
unknown to the Group or which might not be material during the period under review
but will turn out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

The macro-economic and political factors, such as trade barriers and the economic
effect of COVID-19, posed uncertainty to the business of the Group. Slowing down of
global economic growth, risk of stagflation and unstable foreign exchange rate and
interest rate were also the factors that adversely affected the financial performance of
the Group.

Strategic Direction Risk

The success of future business depends on the achievement of our strategic
objectives including but not limited to acquisitions, joint ventures, disposals and/or
restructurings. The Group faced risk in its application of assets and capital towards
potential investments when business and investment opportunities had arisen.

Legal and Compliance Risk

Legal risk might be constituted due to unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or
unfavourable judgements which disrupted or negatively affected the business
operations or financial conditions of the Group.

Failing to oblige by relevant applicable laws and regulations might constitute
compliance risk. The Group might suffer from financial losses or losses in reputation
due to any possible legal risk or regulatory sanctions.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont'd)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont'd)

Policy risk

The change in governmental policies and regulations in the countries in which the
Group operated, such as amended environmental protection policies, might result
in adjustment to production method or increase in cost in fulfilling those statutory
standards.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2022 are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2022 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 59 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK21 cents (2021: HK22 cents) per Share was paid on 22
December 2021 to the Shareholders. The Board has recommended the payment of
a final dividend of HK14 cents (2021: HK22 cents) per Share. Subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend of HK14 cents will be
paid on 1 September 2022 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members of the Company on 22 August 2022.

The Board intends to maintain long term return for shareholders. In deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into consideration of various factors, such as the financial results of the
operation, general financial condition of the Group, future funding requirements on
capital, business operations and development, general market conditions, interest
of shareholders as a whole, legal requirements, and other conditions that the Board
deems relevant.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 8 August 2022 to
11 August 2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending the forthcoming AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 5 August 2022. The record date which determines the Shareholder’s voting right is
scheduled on 8 August 2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Cont’d)

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 18 August 2022 to
22 August 2022 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 17 August 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the 2022
Financial Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the 2022 Financial Year are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,346 million (2021: HK$2,145 million) comprising share premium,
share-based reserve, retained earnings, and offsetting the treasure shares of the
Company.

Under the Companies Law (Cap. 22) of the Cayman Islands, in addition to the retained
earnings of the Company, the share premium and capital reserves of the Company are
also available for distribution to the Shareholders provided that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately
following the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the 2022 Financial Year.
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DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other donation totalling
approximately HK$1,087,000 (2021: HK$1,697,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Expenditure of approximately HK$122 million (2021: HK$202 million) was incurred
during 2022 Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
of the Group are set out in note 6 and 7 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

During the 2022 Financial Year, no interest had been capitalised (2021: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the 2022 Financial Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 66.9% of the Group's total sales and sales to the Group's largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 35.9%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 41.5% of the Group's total
purchases and purchase from the Group's largest supplier included therein amounted
to approximately 21.8%.

Except as disclosed below, none of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors had owned more than
5% of the Company’s issued Shares) had any interests in the Group'’s five largest
customers or suppliers noted above:

Toray, a substantial shareholder of the Company, accounted for approximately 1.8%
of the Group's total purchases. The purchase from Toray constituted continuing
connected transactions, details of which are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Toray also accounted for approximately 0.6% of the Group’s total sales. The sales to
Toray constituted continuing connected transactions, details of which are set out in
note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 160 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The list of Directors during the 2022 Financial Year was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer with effect
from 1 October 2021)

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Vice Chairman)
(re-designated as Vice Chairman with effect from 1 October 2021)

Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Kyuichi FUKUMOTO (appointed with effect from 1 February 2022)

Mr. Toshiya ISHII (resigned on T February 2022)

Non-executive Director
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI, Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr. NG Ching
Wah will retire by rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and will, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election as Directors.

Pursuant to article 114 of the Articles, the Board shall have the power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until
the next following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting.

Accordingly, Mr. Kyuichi FUKUMOTO, appointed as executive Director effective from
1 February 2022, will hold office until the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, has
offered himself for re-election as Director.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 14 to 17 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of two years, renewable thereafter until terminated by
either party by giving at least six months’ prior notice to another party in writing.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors had
been appointed for a term of two years and are renewable thereafter.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles and
the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM had a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of each Director’s experience, responsibility and the time
commitment to the business of the Group.

Details of emoluments of every Director for the 2022 Financial Year are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement, or contract of significance in relation to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his or her connected entity had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during or at the end of the 2022 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business which
caused or might cause any significant competition with the business of the Group and
any other conflicts of interest which any such person had or might had with the Group
during the year under review.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors were not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2022 Financial Year was the Company, its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives (Note 1) of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (Note 1) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES
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Number of Issued Shares Held and Nature of Interests

BEERTROGUEREEME
Approximate
Corporate Interests percentage
(interests of a of issued
Name of Directors/ Personal Interests Family Interests controlled Trusts and Total share capital
Chief Executives (beneficial owner)  (interests of spouse) corporation) similar interests Interests of the Company
BAER RRER EEER REAARERTRA
EZ/BRTHARES (REBEA) (BEzER) (RSEEEZER) ERRENER ERiE ZBRESL
(Note 4)
(Mizt4)
Wan Wai Loi 10,295,000 1,030,000 - - 11,325,000 0.80%
FER (Note 2)
UEY)
Tou Kit Vai 707,000 - - - 707,000 0.05%
ikl
Lau YiuTong 53,393,000 - - - 53,393,000 3.78%
Ell e
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel 650,000 - - - 650,000 0.05%
HER
Tsang Sian-Chung, Hubert 450,000 - - - 450,000 0.03%
B (Note 3)
UES)
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)
Notes:

1. Within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

2. The Shares are held by Ms. Chiu Bo Lan, the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

3. Mr. Tsang Sian-Chung, Hubert is the Chief Information Officer of the Company who was
granted share options of the Company. A summary of Share Option Scheme is set out
on pages 29 to 32 of this annual report.

4. Based on the information and the total number of issued Shares of the Company on
the date of relevant event per notification to the Company made by the Directors/Chief
Executives.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, no Directors nor chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year under review were the rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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EERHKE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS ~ FERERHMATRRHH

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES RERD < BERAR

As at 31 March 2022, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive ~ R 2022F3A31H A FAL(ARAES
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of & & TR A BB IN) KA R 78 {5 sk #8748
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the A&7 R #E B R IE &5 K HA B 16 H 55 336 1§78
FTHREZECMAREZERSIOKBNT

SFO were as follows:

28

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES R 2HFR
Approximate percentage
Capacity in which Number of of issued share capital
Name ordinary shares were held ordinary shares of the Company
wE BB RIFFEEBRZ &4 LERHE REAREBITREAZ
BHEs T
(Note 7)
(PRFEE7)
Toray Beneficial Owner 405,394,000 (L) 28.03%
BEmEAA
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. Approved Lending Agent 85,193,844 (L) 6.04%
RO B ARIEA 85,193,844 (P)
Lam Wing Tak Beneficial Owner 14,566,000 (L)
weRiE BEmEAA
Interest of Spouse 718,000 (L)
R iEER
Founder of a discretionary trust 69,243,000 (L)
2REEFEZAIMA
84,527,000 5.85%
(Note 5)
(BF3ES)
Wong Bik Ha Beneficial Owner 718,000 (L)
BEEE ExfEAA
Interest of Spouse 14,566,000 (L)
iR p
Founder of a discretionary trust 69,243,000 (L)
2RGEFEZAIMA
84,527,000 5.85%
(Note 5)
(Bt3ES)
Pandanus Associates Inc. Interest of a 70,600,000 (L) 5.00%
controlled corporation (Note 6)
REEE R (Ff5E6)
Pandanus Partners L.P. Interest of a 70,600,000 (L) 5.00%
controlled corporation (Note 6)
REAE R (P 5 6)
FIL Limited Interest of a 70,600,000 (L) 5.00%

controlled corporation (Note 6)
LB ER (fif5te)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont'd)
Notes:

5. Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the spouse of Ms. Wong Bik Ha, vice versa. For the purpose of the
SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the founder of the family trust.

6. Pandanus Partners L.P. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Pandanus Associates Inc., and
Pandanus Partners L.P. holds 37.01% shareholding of FIL Limited. Pandanus Associates
Inc., Pandanus Partners L.P. and FIL Limited are therefore deemed to be interested in
the 70,600,000 shares of the Company.

7. Based on the information and the total number of issued Shares of the Company on
the date of relevant event per notification to the Company made by the respective
Shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of Shareholders passed on 27 April 2007, the
Company adopted the Share Option Scheme subject to the terms and conditions
therein.

Options enabling the exercise of 22,820,000 Shares were granted on 18 July 2007
("1st Grant”) and expired on 17 July 2017. Options enabling the exercise of 10,000,000
Shares were granted on 11 October 2013 (“2nd Grant”) will expire on 10 October 2023.
The closing price of the share of the Company immediately before the dates of the 1st
Grant and the 2nd Grant were HK$4.86 and HK$10.06 per share respectively.

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
1. Purpose
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company with
a flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible participants (as defined in
paragraph 2 below).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)
2. Participants

The Board may grant options to any eligible participants, namely an
employee, Director or Non-executive Director (including INED) of any Member

of the Group.

"Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding company,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other companies or associated
companies of the Company which the Board determines will be subject to the

Share Option Scheme.

3. Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of Listing
of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007 (the “Listing Date”),
representing 143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in issue

from time to time.

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant (including exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the

Shares in issue at the date of grant of the options.

5. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option Scheme

(a) General vesting period

The general vesting period for options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless the Board specifies a different
vesting period under the terms of the offer. The option period will not be

more than 10 years from the date of grant.

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested and any

performance conditions or targets set by the Board have been met.

(b) Duration of the Share Option Scheme

The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years from the

Listing Date.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
6. Exercise price and payment on grant
(a) Exercise price

The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be the price determined by the Board and notified to the option holder
which shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets;

(ii) the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet of the Shares on the date of grant of the option; and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares.

(b) Payment on grant

Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of an option
granted to them.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was terminated automatically at midnight on the
day immediately before the 10th anniversary of the Listing Date, in other
words, the Share Option Scheme was terminated as at 17 May 2017.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
B. OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY

The share options issued under 1st Grant were fully exercised. The movement of
2nd Grant as at 31 March 2022 was as follows:

Percentage  Number of
Number of of total ~ Share Options
Date of Share Options Vesting Share Options Vested/to  Exercisable
Grant  Grantee Exercise Price Granted Tranche Date Granted be Vested  Period
Bkt  EHE/
(B4 BRESY %58
RERE ARA TRE BREHE #x BEAH WEAL BREEE GEH
1171002013 Eligible Employees HKS9.98 10,000,000 Tst 111072016 30% 3000000 11/10/2016 -
SERESR 99T -4t 10/10/2023
nd 1171012019 35% 3500000 11/10/2019 -
o 10/10/203
3rd 1111012022 35% 3500000 11/10/2022 -
F=i 10/10/2023

The fair value of options of the 2nd Grant is approximately at an average of
HKS$1.85 per Share on the basis of binomial model (the “Model”). The significant
inputs into the Model were the closing price of the Share of the Company at the
date of grant of HK$9.98 per Share, annual risk-free interest rate of approximately
2.09%, an expected option life of approximate 10 years, expected volatility of 45%
and annual dividend yield of 9%. HK$586,000 amortised fair value of share options
for the 2022 Financial Year was charged to the consolidated income statement
(2021: HK$584,000).

The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded options that
are fully transferable. The Model requires input of highly subjective assumptions,
including the expected stock price volatility. Since the Company's share options
have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and
because change in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate, the Model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the
fair value of the share options.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements also constituted continuing connected transaction under the Listing
Rules.

During the 2022 Financial Year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions, which were subject to reporting, and announcement requirements but
are exempt from the independent shareholders’approval requirement under Chapter
14A.33 of the Listing Rules:

(1) SALE OF KNITTED FABRIC TO CRYSTAL GROUP

During the 2022 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to a
master agreement dated 30 March 2021 in relation to the sale of knitted fabric
manufactured and owned by the Group to Crystal International Group Limited
("Crystal”together with its subsidiaries, referred to as “Crystal Group”) with its term
up to 31 March 2024 ("Master Agreement relating to the Sale of Knitted Fabrics”).
The annual cap for each of the three years ended 31 March 2022, ending 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2024 shall be HK$2,000 million. Details of the Master
Agreement relating to the Sale of Knitted Fabrics were set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 March 2021.

During the 2022 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Crystal
Group and the Group was approximately HK$946 million which was within the

relevant annual cap.

According to the Listing Rules, by virtue of its shareholding in PCGT Limited, an
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Crystal is a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of a subsidiary of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level. Crystal Group
is therefore also regarded as connected person of the Company.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(2) SALE OF YARNS BY TORAY TO THE GROUP

During the 2022 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 28 July 2017 in relation to sale of yarns by manufactured or
owned by Toray Industries, Inc. (“Toray’, together with its subsidiaries, “Toray
Group”) to the Group for a period ending 31 March 2020. The original term of the
agreement has expired on 31 March 2020 and the agreement has been renewed
for a further term of three years up to 31 March 2023. The annual cap for each of
the three years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 and ending 31 March
2023 shall be HK$230 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Toray is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company. Toray Group is therefore also
regarded as connected person of the Company.

During the 2022 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Toray
Group and the Group was approximately HK$71 million which was within the

relevant annual cap.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.

(3) SALE OF FABRICS BY THE GROUP TO TORAY GROUP

During the 2022 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 30 March 2021 in relation to sale of fabrics by the Group to
Toray Group for a term of three financial years. The annual cap for each of the
three financial years ending 31 March 2024 shall be HK$100 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Toray is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company. Toray Group is therefore also
regarded as connected person of the Company.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(3) SALE OF FABRICS BY THE GROUP TO TORAY GROUP (Cont’d)
During the 2022 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Toray
Group and the Group was approximately HK$35 million which was within the
relevant annual cap.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. PwC had issued an unmodified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the above continuing connected transactions (1) to (3)
as disclosed by the Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor’s letter was provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the "Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are Independent
Non-executive Directors). Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the financial statements of the Group for the 2022
Financial Year and discussed with the management and the auditor of the Company
on the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal
controls and financial reporting matters.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont'd)

Pursuant to the recent development of CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, an amended and restated terms of reference for Audit Committee was
effective from 1 January 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 37 to 53 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and performance, relationships with
its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report which will be published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued shares
of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the 2022 Financial Year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company will be proposed for approval by the Shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Masaru OKUTOMI
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 June 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERQRE

The Board is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance BZRBNEFSKIENLEES @ WIRFA
to enhance transparency and accountability and to safeguard the interests of EBAEHEMEE  HEARTRER ZFzE -
Shareholders of the Company. The Group reviews corporate governance practices AEBETHRAPEE AT  BEUERE
from time to time to ensure that business activities and decision making processesare ~ #EB MR REFZIFEENHRE -

properly regulated.

A. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE OF THE COMPANY

The Company complied with the applicable code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to enhance the corporate
governance standard of the Company throughout the 2022 Financial Year.

During the year, Mr. Wan Wai Loi (from 1 April 2021 to 30 September 2021) and
Mr. Masaru Okutomi (since 1 October 2021) served the roles of Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company simultaneously, hence the Company did
not comply with the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. Although the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company have not been segregated, powers and
authorities have not been over-concentrated as all major decisions are made
in consultation with Board members and senior management who possess the
relevant knowledge and expertise, as well as appropriate Board committees.
Hence, the current arrangements are subject to adequate checks and balances
notwithstanding such deviation. While the dual role arrangement has provided
strong and consistent leadership and facilitated the implementation of the
Group's business strategies, the Company will nevertheless review the structure
from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstance.

B. THE BOARD

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, the
Board is responsible for formulation of strategic, management and financial
objectives of the Group and ensuring that Shareholders’ interests are
protected. Daily operations and administration of the Group are delegated
to the Executive Directors and the management. The Board has established
Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities to these
committees as set out in their respective terms of reference. All relevant terms
of reference are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
the responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the business
and operating activities and development of the Group. Every Director is
committed to devoting sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of the
Board and material matters of the Company and serving the Board with such
degree of care and due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.
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EXRELHSE

B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

1.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD (Cont’d)

Executive Directors are responsible for managing different aspects or
functions of the business of the Group. The Non-executive Directors advise
on business strategies of the Group and review its financial and operational
performance. The INEDs serve the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and provide independent reviews
on the issues of strategic direction, development, performance and risk
management of the Group.

All Directors had been updated and briefed relevant changes in legal and
regulatory matters to ensure that they had a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Group and that they were fully aware of their
responsibilities under applicable laws and regulations.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for making all major decisions of the Company,
including approving and monitoring all major policies, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control, risk management framework, significant
financial and operational matters as well as nomination of directors. The day-
to-day management and operation of the Company are delegated to the
management team of the Company under the supervision of the Executive
Directors. The Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and
participate in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast
of the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor and
ensure the management carrying out all directions and strategies set by the
Board appropriately.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Profiles of current Directors are set out on pages 14 to 17 of this annual report
and are available on the website of the Company. The list of Directors during
the 2022 Financial Year was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer with effect from
1 October 2021)

Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Vice Chairman) (re-designated as Vice Chairman
with effect from 1 October 2021)

Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Kyuichi FUKUMOTO (appointed with effect from 1 February 2022)

Mr. Toshiya ISHII (resigned on 1 February 2022)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

LEREREE
B. THE BOARD (Cont'd) B. 2R (&)
3. COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Cont’d) 3. EERZAEAR (&)
Non-executive Director FHITES
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong BRLEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael PR¥& K IE+
Mr. NG Ching Wah hmBELE
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel e B 88 %
There is no financial, business, family or other material relationships among EECHMETERBAYE  £7% -
the Directors. The list of Directors and their roles and functions are published RENSEMERER EEREHH
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively. B B 1B A2 B RIS OB A2 BT R A A A
Mk o

The composition of the Board is well-balanced with the Directors having BEERHOEENK  FREFAHA
sales and marketing experience and technical knowledge in textiles business, BB EBCHERTHERLR R
administrative and managerial experience in PRC factories and financial B PRI TR R ERL
and accounting skill. Taking into account the nature and scope of business B AR R g R RN AE
operations and development of the Group, such balance of skills, experience B ¥BaEmEE RS RIRE It
and diversity of perspectives is appropriate for effective decision making. The SREE KBREERZ Tt T EY
Board considers that the Non-executive Director and each of the INEDs bring HARAEMEEBEGE EFRR
their own relevant expertise to the Board. RIFPTEEZREBIIFRNTEEY

EREAGZEXNBETAESS -

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and RERBAIATT ARABIERES
Officers Liability Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken MEREMRETERANBBREER
against Directors and management in execution and discharge of their duties AJRERE D ERITH R ESTNE IR
or in relation thereto. ABEERRE -

4. APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS 4, EEZFE EERER
The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a EEREBERMANERZEEMAA
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional member of the Board. THEEFAHEHRRERIERE
Suitable candidates who are experienced and competent and able to fulfil ERFIEKE BEEELBRE T8
fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence would be recommended BRNETXENE AR #E
to the Board. g aBEREATEERBTE

ESSI

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at EREBRERRAFTFAS EREA
the AGM, the Shareholder can deposit a written notice to that effect at the TERESE CHAMARFGEME
registered office of the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary. REXEEBA  HREZFAARNE
Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director are K- BRRBERATHRESTEZECEFE
published on the website of the Company. 8 7 WNGI
Each of the Executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years BRTEZCZENFREME  H y
and each service agreement is renewable thereafter until terminated by either BERGHZEA TER EEAP—
party by giving to the other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing. FRAS—HFBEHRAPRANERAEELEE

EBAL L HESL

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive BEUIIFENTEENIERTEFTES
Directors had been appointed for a term of two years and are renewable FzABRAEME Hign T&H -

thereafter.

Ay
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B. THE BOARD (Cont’d)

4. APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS (Cont’'d)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for re-
election pursuant to the Articles. Pursuant to the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM and then be
eligible for re-election at that AGM. In addition, at every AGM, one-third
of the Directors, including the chairman, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by Shareholders at least once every three years.
The Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement and
re-election as mentioned above shall be taken into account in calculating
the total number of Directors for the time being but shall not be taken into
account in calculating the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation.
All Directors eligible for re-election shall have their biographical details made
available to Shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision on
their reelection.

Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director
shall be timely disclosed to Shareholders by announcement. Any reasons
for resignation given by the Director shall also be included in such
announcement.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director had been provided with comprehensive and
tailored induction of business operation of the Group, including a site visit of
our factory in China on the first occasion of his appointment.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
from time to time updates the Directors on the latest development on the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont’d)

5.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

(Cont'd)

According to the training records provided by the Directors, a summary of

which during the 2022 Financial Year is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI

Mr. WAN Wai Loi

Mr. TOU Kit Vai

Mr. Kyuichi FUKUMOTO
(appointed with effect from
1 February 2022)

Mr. Toshiya Ishii (resigned on
1 February 2022)

Non-executive Director
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong

Independent Non-executive
Directors

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

Type of trainings

Corporate
governance
BEER
BITES
BEBTE B
FEREE B
ML E B
BTR—kE(H20220F
2H 1 HEZ)
AB
BHEE LA (R 2022 F
251 EEE) B
FHITES
BEREE B
BUFHTES
R 18+ A B
higERE B
HE B 2R e B

A. Attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses

B. Reading materials

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXRERRSE

B. £ (&)

5 EBZABNBREERE (8)

REE EPTIRALHVIFIRC 8% - 70 2022
FHBRFRHABRNENCERE N
T

Topics on training covered

BHIFRE RN EE

Listing Rules and Risk and financial

regulatory updates management
EWRBIREREHR Bk & A EE
B B
B B
B B
A B B
B B
B B
A B A B
B B
B B
s [E Rl

A 2mEne -
IR IR

BEHKE - B

B. BIEEH
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

6.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

THE BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

Number of Meetings

The Board met at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are convened
when deemed necessary by the Board. The schedule of regular meetings for
the whole year had been informed to each Director. The attendance record of
the Directors is set out on page 43 of this annual report.

During the 2022 Financial Year, the Board held 5 meetings to approve
interim and final results announcements, interim report and annual report, to
consider dividend policy, to discuss significant issues and general operation of
the Company.

The Company held the AGM on 12 August 2021. All proposed Shareholders’
resolutions put forwarded were resolved by poll and were duly passed. The
poll result of each resolution was set out in the Company’s announcement
released on the even date.

Practice and Conduct of Meetings

Notice of Board meeting will be served to all Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by the
Company Secretary as delegated by the chairman. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include any matters which they believe to be appropriate in
the agenda of the Board meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate
background information and supporting analysis are made available to the
Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of the Board meeting. All
Directors are given separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management for further information and enquiries. The Company Secretary
and relevant senior management members attend all the meetings of the
Board and Board committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance and financial matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the
Directors or substantial Shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in
the Board meeting. Pursuant to the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote
on (nor is counted in the quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of
any contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in which he or
any of his associates (including any person who would be deemed to be an
"associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has any material interest
except in certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting
is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such requirement at the
commencement of each Board meeting and declaration of interest is properly
made in the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

6. THE BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Cont'd)

Practice and Conduct of Meetings (Cont'd)

Directors have access to advice and services of the Company Secretary and
key officers of the Company in relation to the Board procedures. Draft minutes
of the Board or Board committee meetings recorded in sufficient details,
the matters considered by the participants of those meetings and decisions
reached are forwarded to the participants for comments within a reasonable
time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of Board or Board
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary, which are open for
inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information
to allow the Directors to fulfil their duties properly. Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses with the
approval of the Board, if necessary.

Attendance of Meetings

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the Board, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
AGM during the 2022 Financial Year are set out as follows:

6.

EXRERRSE
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EEREERRRAE (H)
ERERRERF (H)
EEERERARFARAWENTIE
BERHEHEZREFNERNR
B -EERIEETZESEREER
FHLEZEER2REEMETENSE
BNEBRRE TR ERENAE
FRAANXZEZERTEIERER
R-EERFIEBETLZEEERLCHE
REERHARMETE FAES
RAEBEREA  BHAEANRATE
BB RS -

EERMAEKBREETE EE Rk
REVER  AEESEMIREMETT
HBE BEFWAFER REINE
ERMER ASKEVEERR
ERBAARAN -

HESEBER
BEER00NFHHRFEHRELF
EER BERZEe FHEEG -
REZEBGEHMBREBFAE 20
BHEIIAT

Meetings attended/Meetings held
HEEERY BTEERR

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee AGM
EZR ERZET ¥FMZEe REZEE RREFAE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Chairman and ~ REB K4 (TEETH
Chief Executive Officer) ##) 55  NATEA 22 23 1/1
Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Vice Chairman) FEREE(FFE) 55 NATEA 22 313 1/1
Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer) BT E (BEIFHEE) 45 NATER N/ATNE A N/ATE 1/1
Mr. Kyuichi FUKUMOTO (appointed  BILR— L% (H2022F
with effect from 1 February 2022) 2H1HEZ(F) 1/1 N/AiE A N/AiE B N/ATEA N/AiE A
Mr. Toshiya ISHII (resigned on BHEHEE (Ro02F
1 February 2022) 2A18E(F) 44 NATERA NATER  NATER 1/1
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong RREE 55 NATER N/AiE R N/AZNE 1/1
INEDs BIUFHTES
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael R EEL 5/5 4/4 22 33 1/1
Mr.NG Ching Wah MEELE 5/5 4/4 22 313 1/1
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel MRS 5L 4 5/5 4/4 22 3/3 1/1
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

7. INEDS
The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise throughout the 2022 Financial Year.

As at 31 March 2022, the Board comprised eight members with three INEDs.
The number of INEDs met the minimum requirement prescribed under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

C. CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

The Chairman of the Board provides leadership for the Board and is responsible
for chairing the meetings, managing the operations of the Board and ensuring
that all matters submitted for discussion are discussed by the Board in a timely
and orderly manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for leading the
management team and overseeing the operations for the Group.

During the year, Mr. Wan Wai Loi (from 1 April 2021 to 30 September 2021) and
Mr. Masaru Okutomi (since 1 October 2021) served the roles of Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company simultaneously, hence the Company did
not comply with the code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that
the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The Company is of the view that it is in the best interest of the Company that each
of Mr. Wan Wai Loi and Mr. Masaru Okutomi, with his relevant in-depth expertise
and knowledge in the Group's business, acts in the dual capacity as Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Although the roles of the chairman
and the chief executive officer of the Company are not segregated, powers and
authorities have not been over-concentrated as all major decisions are made
in consultation with Board members and senior management who possess the
relevant knowledge and expertise, as well as appropriate Board committees.
Hence, the current arrangements are subject to adequate checks and balances
notwithstanding such deviation.

While the dual role arrangement has provided strong and consistent leadership
and facilitated the implementation of the Group’s business strategies, the
Company will nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of the
prevailing circumstance.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES (Cont'd)

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures that all
Directors were properly briefed on the issues arising at the Board meetings and
provided with adequate information in a timely manner.

The Company received an annual written confirmation from each of the INEDs
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered
them to be independence of the management and free of any relationship that
could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three main Board Committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, each
chaired by different INED, to assist the Board in overseeing particular aspects of
the Company'’s affairs. Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions
and recommendations at the Board meetings.

The terms of reference (as revised) setting out the principles, procedures and
arrangements of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee have been reviewed by the Board with reference to
the CG Code and are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are reviewing, overseeing and supervising the effectiveness of
the Group's financial reporting process, risk management and internal control
systems.

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching
Wah and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael. All of them are INEDs. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited annual consolidated financial
information of the Group for the 2022 Financial Year and the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group with the management in
conjunction with the auditor. The Annual Report for the 2022 Financial Year has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2022 Financial Year. The major
work performed by the Audit Committee in respect of the 2022 Financial Year
included approving the terms of engagement (including the remuneration) of
the external auditor; reviewing the unaudited interim financial information and
interim results announcement for the six months ended 30 September 2021;
reviewing the audited annual consolidated financial information and final results
announcement for the 2022 Financial Year; reviewing the work of the Group'’s
internal audit department; assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s systems
of risk management and internal control and reviewing the effectiveness of the
whistleblowing policy and the incidents reported through such channel. The
attendance of the Directors for the Audit Committee meetings is set out in the
table on page 43 of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s external
auditor.

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s
external auditor during the years under review (and the previous year) are as
follows:

Audit Services EIZR
Non-audit Services FEEZIRTE
— Tax consultation services — SRR AR TS

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided
by the Company’s external auditor and concluded that such services did not affect
the independence of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended the Board about re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the coming year
and the related resolutions shall be put forth in the forthcoming AGM.
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on appointment of Directors with due regard to diversity of the Board and
management of the Board succession.

The majority members of the Nomination Committee are INEDs. As at the date
of the report, the members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching Wah;
Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Wan Wai Loi and Mr.
Masaru Okutomi. Mr. Ng Ching Wah, an INED, is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The Nomination Committee met three times during the 2022 Financial Year
and reviewed the implementation of the board diversity policy. The major work
performed by the Nomination Committee in respect of the 2022 Financial Year
included nominating new member to the Board, assessing the independence of
the INEDs and making recommendations in line with the Policy on re-election
of the Directors of the Company to be subject to rotation requirements at the
forthcoming AGM (including the new director(s) appointed by the Board who is
subject to re-election requirement under rule 114 of the Articles. The attendance
of the Directors for the Nomination Committee meeting is set out in the table on
page 43 of this annual report.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) on 21 March
2014. A summary of this Diversity Policy, together with the measurable objectives
set for implementing this policy, and the progress made towards achieving those
objectives are disclosed as below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

In reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
and the Board members considered a number of factors, including but not limited
to educational background, professional qualifications, skills, industry experience,
age, gender and ethnic origin, subject to the actual situation of the Company and
relevant provisions under the applicable laws. Restrictions like age, gender and
ethnic origin will not be set when short-listing the candidates.
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TEEREE

D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd) D. EZRZEE (&)
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Cont'd) EERZTLBE (H])
Measurable Objectives At EEE

The Nomination Committee will discuss and agree on the measurable objectives
for achieving diversity and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

The achievement of these objectives is measurable on an objective review by
shareholders of the overall composition of the Board, the diversity of background
and experience of individual directors and the effectiveness of the Board in
promoting shareholder’s interests. In order for shareholders to judge whether the
Board as constituted is a reflection of diversity, the Nomination Committee shall
provide sufficient information to shareholders about the size, qualifications of
each individual Board member and therefore, the Board as a whole.

GENDER DIVERSITY

At 31 March 2022, the Group employed around 4,697 people, being 66.5% male
and 33.5% female. The Company will take steps to promote gender diversity at
all levels of the Company, including but without limitation at the Board and the
management levels. The Company recognizes that the gender diversity at the
Board level can be improved given all our Directors are male. The Group commits
to make changes to single-gender situation of the Board by 31 December 2024.

The following table sets out the workforce gender diversity by region and gender
at 31 March 2022:

REZEGHWRIHEERZ TN
A ERRYAEERELHERE AR
e

ZERBEMERBBRREE MRS
E=ZRERAK BEFNERRER
MZTUAREERRERRA DA R
HREE - BTEBRRHAGEZRNA
REERBREZTL  REZBEER
BEREHBAESHAR SEFRX
BEMEBUENEERERNEHER -

MBI T

BR2022F 38318 AEBEHF %4697
HET EF665%HBM  335% 5%
Mo KRB FE  RARE ET
EZHREDURNZL BEETRRES
BREERERE - AARPH ENEEE
EAEH EZRERMMERZ TN
BREYUE - AEBEH NN 2024512 A
JIHANEEEREANE—NRE -

TREZME &M RIE SR 20226 3 A 31
BEIE TR Z TR

Percentage of Workforce

EBIfftES K
Total Male Female
Country EiES Ty B ZH
China i 80.3% 52.7% 27.6%
Vietnam i 18.1% 12.8% 5.3%
Hong Kong and other offices in Asia BEREAMTMNHER 1.6% 1.0% 0.6%
Total BET 100.0% 66.5% 33.5%
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D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management of the Group with reference to the nature of their works, complexity
of their responsibilities and performances and to make recommendations to
the Board. No director is allowed to take part in any discussion about his own
remuneration.

The majority members of the Remuneration Committee are INEDs. As at the date
of report, the members of the Remuneration Committee are Dr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah, Mr. Wan Wai Loi and Mr.
Masaru Okutomi. Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, an INED, is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee met twice during the 2022 Financial Year. The
major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2022 Financial
Year included reviewing the remunerations of the Directors and senior
management with reference to the remuneration levels of directors and senior
management of comparable listed companies. The attendance of the Directors for
the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the table on page 43 of this
annual report.

Details of the remunerations of the Directors disclosed pursuant to Section 161
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are
set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. Executive Directors’
remunerations shall from time to time be determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board should be responsible for performing corporate governance duties as
follows:

(@) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS (Cont'd)

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Sau Yee was appointed as Company Secretary on 23 November 2017
being a full-time employee of the Company to report directly to the Board. The
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure the Board procedures, and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are
followed. During the 2022 Financial Year, the Company Secretary complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the standard of Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in such
Code throughout the 2022 Financial Year.

. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for preparing the Company’s financial
statements for 2022 Financial Year which gave a true and fair view of financial
position of the Group and in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Company’s interim report and annual report
were prepared and published in accordance with statutory requirements and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in a timely manner required under the
Listing Rules. Directors were provided with adequate information to enable them
to make an informed assessment of financial and other information on matters for
their approval. Furthermore, Directors were provided with monthly updates on
the Group's performance to enable them to discharge their duties.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company regarding its reporting
responsibility to Shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 54 to 58 of this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. From time to time and at least annually, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to ensure that they meet with
the ever-changing business environment as well as the requirements under
the Listing Rules. To enhance the objectiveness and credibility of the review, an
independent consultancy firm has been engaged to periodically conduct the
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control system.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board, assisted by the Audit
Committee, assessed the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control system of the Group by reviewing the investigation results
of management report and internal audits, and considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2022 was effective and adequate.

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
shareholders’investment and assets of the Group. The Company has from time to
time reviewed effectiveness of internal control systems and adopts corresponding
measures. Certain management committees were set up to set policies and
monitor potential internal control weakness in order to ensure that they meet

with the dynamic and ever-changing business environment.

During the 2022 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed effectiveness of the
Group's internal control systems, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions, adequacy of resources, training
programmes, budget, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, through the Internal Audit
Department, the Audit Committee and with assistance of an independent risk
consulting firm.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system which enables
employees to raise concern, in confidence, about the possible improprieties in
any matter relating to the Company, reported case will be assessed with due care,
with top management oversight and for valid compliant, appropriate action will
be taken to address the concern.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with
Shareholders and strives to ensure timeliness, completeness and accuracy
of information disclosure to Shareholders and to protect the interests of
Shareholders.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and reviews it
on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. As a channel to further promote
effective communication, the Group maintains a website allowing Shareholders
to access updates on the Company's particulars where the Company’s
announcements, financial information, shareholders’ communication policy and
other information are posted.

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with Shareholders through general
meeting of the Company to communicate with Shareholders. The chairman of
the Board, the representative of each committee and the external auditor attend
the general meeting to answer any questions from Shareholders. A separate
resolution shall be proposed at general meeting on each substantially separate
issue. A Shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of proxies to attend and
vote in his stead.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website,
www.pacific-textiles.com. where information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public access.

The relevant part of the shareholders’ communication policy was reviewed during
the year. Sufficient channels for shareholders to communicate their views on
various matters affecting the Company and the steps to solicit and understand
the views of shareholders and stakeholders were considered to be sufficient. The
implementation of the policy and the communication with shareholders were
effective.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY

GENERAL MEETING

Any two or more shareholders or any one shareholder which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company may, in accordance with requirements and procedures
set out in the Articles of the Company, make a written requisition to the Board
to convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company and put forward
proposals at the meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
written requisition which must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.
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K.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Cont’d)

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY

GENERAL MEETING (Cont’d)

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to put forward new resolutions
at general meetings under Cayman Islands law or the Articles of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution may request the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with procedures set out
above.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Notice of all general meetings shall be sent to Shareholders in accordance
with the Articles and the requirements of Listing Rules. Notice for AGM and all
other general meetings shall be sent at least 20 clear business days and 10 clear
business days prior to the meeting respectively.

VOTING BY POLL

At any general meetings, the chairman may exercise his power under the Articles
to put each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of poll, explain
detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer any questions from
Shareholders on voting by poll. The results of the poll, if any, will be published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

PROCEDURES FOR RAISING ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited (Address: 17M/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong and Telephone: (852) 2862 8555).

Shareholders who have any questions for the Board may send written enquiries
together with their detailed contact information, such as postal address or e-mail
address, by post to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong or by
e-mail to ir@pacific-textiles.com.

The Board also encourages Shareholders to attend general meetings to make
enquiries directly.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles is published on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively. During the 2022 Financial Year, there was no change to the Articles
of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
15 3L 1% BB 3R o5

_
pwc

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the
"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) which are set out on pages 59 to 159,
comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2022;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSASs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period. We considered “Revenue recognition”as a key audit matter that was addressed
in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this

matter.

Key Audit Matter
REESEE

Revenue Recognition

LN 34

Refer to note 2.20 for the Group’s accounting policies on revenue
recognition and note 5 for the analysis of revenue from sales of
goods for the year ended 31 March 2022.

B BESEERANHWARINSEBR H28ME220-0
BEHE202F3 A3 BLEFEHEEMMERANDIN - 5
2BMIEES

Revenue from sales of goods for the year ended 31 March 2022
amounted to HK$6,066,310,000. The Group has operations in
several geographical locations, and derives revenue from sales to
multiple customers.

BZE2022F3A31 A IEFEHEE MBI AR 6066310000
Bt EEERZEMEREEY  UHZEEFHEDNS
WA e

Revenue is recognised when the control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customers have full discretion over the price to
sell the products and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the specified location
and the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customers.

EEMNERREEEREP (AIRXNERTERPE)  MEP
HIHEEmNEREGRENGE®R  EXBFAIETERPE
MEMAARBOZEER > ESEEIWA - EERVEERE
M ARENBEXLAAREEBRERZFK @ ABRERM -

We focused on this area due to the large volume of revenue
transactions derived from sales to multiple customers in different
geographical locations such that we have incurred significant time
and resources in carrying out our work in this area.

BMETZAGERAREETFRMERZEZ P HE KUK
ARGER  MBEMAETRZEENITHETEETRERMH

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WA BHERE

BREESER
MREFEESRERMANERAE  RA
HAMEAVBREANENTRREENSE
B HPIR B BMAMER] HEARE FH
EERMEARBRAMBERRRHARER
FAETRIEN - RMU T HZFRERERN
BR -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ET A REEREEREE

We understood, evaluated and tested management’s key internal
controls that are present in the Group's sales process from end-to-
end.

BMETH FEMBREEREY EEEFEERIETOER

P ER LA ©

We tested samples of sales transactions against invoices and other
supporting documents. To the extent that those sales have been
settled, we also reviewed bank remittance advices and/or bank
statements in support of the payments made by the customers.
BMEHHBEERAMIHEXHEHEER HIELRMBRH -
MZEHEDEE  BMTEERXHEF IR IRITER
BAER,LIEITRES -

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date to assess whether sales
transactions were recognised in the correct reporting periods.
o ZME AR EREEEBRPRANBRELENHEER
Z U AHERIRETRERN RS BMER -

Our work also included testing of a sample of revenue-related
journal entries by inquiring management of their nature and
inspecting the relevant supporting documents.
BMOITEEEERBAREREERFME REHBEE X
TSR B R R B ETTRIA -

We found that the Groups' sales transactions being tested were
recognised in a manner consistent with the Group's accounting
policy for revenue recognition.

MR EEEFAIRNHEERFERE
REABE BT AER -

BB WA RE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WA BHERE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group'’s financial reporting
process.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 12021 /2022 Annual Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WA BHERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
WA BHERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeqguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Lam Chun Yee, Johnny.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2022

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 12021 /2022 Annual Report
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BEERN

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS GRERR

For the year ended 31 March 2022

HZE20202F3A831HIEFE

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET T T
Revenue ON 5 6,066,310 5,384,897
Cost of sales & B 23 (5,289,992) (4,523,208)
Gross profit ER 776,318 861,689
Other income and other gains — net HA YA R B U e — % 58 22 92,413 193,246
Reversal of impairment/(impairment loss) JE Ut R S Rk (B CRUVE S 18)
of trade receivables 12 366 (5,396)
Distribution and selling expenses DEREERX 23 (73,476) (80,883)
General and administrative expenses — M RITHRAX 23 (178,594) (179,713)
Operating profit geERR 617,027 788,943
Finance income R TN 25 16,125 23,347
Finance costs YR IDIN 25 (21,975) (14,572)
Share of profits of associates SR QA2 R T 9 34,890 40,647
Profit before income tax Fir 8 B A0 % 646,067 838,365
Income tax expense Fr5Rim% 26 (66,832) (103,026)
Profit for the year FEER 579,235 735,339
Profit attributable to: THIALTEERF
Equity holders of the Company RABIERFFAA 572,677 721,491
Non-controlling interests FE 12 Il 1 7 6,558 13,848
579,235 735,339
Earnings per share attributable to FRARREIERFTE ABGETR
equity holders of the Company for the year B (AFRBETYIR)
(expressed in HKS per share)
- basic —ER 27 0.41 0.51
~ diluted —#E 27 0.41 0.51 ,

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in conjunction with

the accompanying notes.

VA B AR S 18 2R 5% B B BRI < B RE — OB CE -

BEARGHBERERDA

2021/2022 F5]

Ay

59



-/

FINANCIAL INFORMATION \-
MBEN 1

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Fe2EkER

For the year ended 31 March 2022 HE202F3A31BIEFE

Profit for the year FEEA 579,235 735,339
Other comprehensive income: Hi 2wl A -
Items that have been or may be BB S HEZ By EA -

reclassified to profit or loss:

Currency translation differences INEME EE 116,398 205,368
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZEKRALRE 695,633 940,707
Attributable to: TEIA L :

Equity holders of the Company AATIEREFBA 687,438 923,635

Non-controlling interests FE4E I M A 2 8,195 17,072

695,633 940,707

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in A L&A 2 TUREE R B EEREMT 2 M 75 — G153

conjunction with the accompanying notes g °

Pacific Textiles"HoIdings Limited nnual Report
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET RREEARRK
As at 31 March 2022 2022331 H
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FERT T T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB RZE 6 1,443,149 1,433,276
Right-of-use assets EREEE 7 192,186 200,217
Interests in associates REE AR 2 ER 9 359,368 347,077
Financial assets at fair value through other BRAAEF AREMEEBAL
comprehensive income SREE 10 427 853
Deferred income tax assets REFSHEE 19 19,240 15,525
Deposits for land use rights and prepayment for T REZ ST E HE
property, plant and equipment KRR ERTER A 13 110,020 71,744
2,124,390 2,068,692
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 1 1,236,784 1,223,425
Trade and bills receivables ERERERE 12 945,591 863,552
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BEFKER
H fth & W 5K IE 13 46,895 64,168
Amounts due from associates JIE B & R B RE 9 1,388 12,605
Financial assets at fair value through BRAREFABENEREE
profit or loss 14 44,018 15,437
Current income tax recoverable AT e B AR 1S T - 6,010
Short-term bank deposits EERITER 15 - 11,323
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHEER 15 1,545,128 946,152
... 389804 3,142,672
Total assets EERE 5,944,194 5,211,364
EQUITY &
Equity attributable to equity holders of the AT EIEIFHE AEEES
Company y
Share capital [N 16 1,411 1,411
Share premium I 15 % B 16 1,303,246 1,303,246
Reserves 7 s 17 2,114,468 2,033,264
3,419,125 3,337,921
Non-controlling interests IE = il M R 11,399 15,704
Total equity BB 3,430,524 3,353,625

EXHBERERAT | 2021/2022 F3 61



FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEN

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Cont'd)

As at 31 March 2022

HREEAER(R)

202293 A31H

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTERT T T
LIABILITIES =K
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Borrowings BE 18 126,218 125,375
Lease liabilities HEAE 7 7,974 7,181
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHEE 19 79,845 63,219
Other non-current provision H A IEmE B 21 37,957 37,310
251,994 233,085
Current liabilities nREBAE
Borrowings BE 18 1,453,683 645,443
Trade and bills payables ERERRER 20 592,691 718,617
Accruals and other payables FEETIR B R Efib B 5RIE 21 137,778 165,527
Lease liabilities HEBE 7 27,141 34,036
Financial liabilities at fair value through BRANEFABENSHAR
profit or loss 14 - 3,282
Current income tax liabilities BVHAFTS B & & 50,383 57,749
... 2261676 1,624,654
Total liabilittes = #&f#& = 2513670 1,857,739
Total equity and liabilities EERkEEERE 5,944,194 5,211,364

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the S _E4RE BE B (53 FEELREMNT 2 M 5 — G152

accompanying notes. I

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 23~ EERE N 20225 6 A 23 AR 4R & B %R

June 2022 and were signed on its behalf: KIRKREEREE
Masaru Okutomi Tou Kit Vai
RER HER
Director Director
EF EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 March 2022

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

FEEREDR

HZE20202F3A831HIEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARAEEREABLER
Non-
Share Share  Treasury controlling
capital  premium shares Reserves  Sub-total interests Total
O s
kA ROEE EERG 1] it B BE
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK%'OOO HK§'000 HK%’OOO HK§'000 HK%’OOO
TR THR TBL THET THR FHT TR
(Note 16) (Note 16) (Note 16) (Note 17)
(Mat1e)  (Fskie)  (Matie)  (Wi&Ea7)
Balance at 1 April 2020 R2020F4B1B2E8 1435 1,398,998 (88,037) 1,673,528 2,985,924 11,132 2,997,056
Comprehensive income: 2EUA:
Profit for the year FERRET - - - 721,491 721,491 13,848 735,339
Other comprehensive income: Et2EUA:
Currency translation differences NNEREZEE - - - 202,144 202,144 3224 205,368
Total other comprehensive income, AHZERALE NRHE
ometoftax ... T R o 200744 20004 324 205,368 _
Total comprehensive income 2AKALE - - - 923,635 923,635 17,072 940,707
Transactions with owners: BREARS
Repurchase and cancellation of shares B Rt sk (24) (95752) 88,037 - (7,739) - (7,739)
Share-based compensation ARDBER e - - - 584 584 - 584
Dividends paid to equity holders MEREAARERE - - - (564483)  (564:483) - (564483)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests ~ FFER FIE BRI RE - - - - - (12,500) (12,500
Totaltransactions withowners ~~~ REAARSZEE Q4 05752 88037 (563899 (71638 (12500 (584138)
Balance at 31 March 2021 R2021E3 831 B 248 1411 1303246 - 2033264 3337920 15704 3353625
Balance at 1 April 2021 R2021F4B1B2ER 1,411 1,303,246 - 2,033,264 3,337,921 15,704 3,353,625
Comprehensive income: 2EUA:
Profit for the year EREH - - - 51677 572677 655 579,235
Other comprehensive income: E2EUA:
Currency translation differences NNEREZEE - = - 114,761 114,761 1637 116,398
Total other comprehensive income, AHZERALE  NERHE
ometoftax ... R S SO L7 S 1 71 1637 116398
Total comprehensive income 2AKAEE - - - 687,438 687,438 8,195 695,633
Transactions with owners: HBREARS:
Share-based compensation ARDBER 2 ME - - - 585 585 = 585
Dividend paid to equity holders MERFEARRRE - - - (606,819)  (606,819) - (606,819)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests ~ FZER #I B FR MRS - - - - - (12,5000 (12,500)
Totaltransactions withowners ~ REFARSEE 0 o - - (606234)  (606234)  (12500) _ (618,734)
Balance at 31 March 2022 R2022F3831 Az &8 1,411 1,303,246 - 2,114,468 3,419,125 11,399 3,430,524

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction

with the accompanying notes.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 March 2022

FERERER

HZE20202F3A831HIEFE

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FTERT FHEIT
Cash flow from operating activities RETEBEERE
Cash generated from operations BEEECHS 29(a) 635,380 706,149
Interest paid [EEREAIPEN (6,651) (10,368)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEEBEFER (44,921) (26,471)
PRC and overseas tax paid 2R B R EINRIR (21,945) (67,932)
PRC tax refunded ERPERIE 16,190 17,132
578,053 618,510
Cash flow from investing activities RETBHFMBRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME  WEREE (161,562) (116,381)
Proceeds from disposals of right-of-use assets and (N &EFREEERYE  BE &
property, plant and equipment REZ TS RIE 29(b) 1,845 104,331
Dividends received from associates QiR /N i A 9 22,707 20,646
Investments in financial assets at fair value RIERAREFT AEBED
through profit or loss PRHEENKRE (44,018)
Placement of short-term bank deposits FARHRITHER 15 - (11,323)
Release of short-term bank deposits BRER R HRITIF R 15 11,323 161,645
Interest income received 2 B A 4,876 5,297
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair  HEE A BT AEMEE WA
value through other comprehensive income LEREBEEZENRIA 426 -
(164,403) 164,215
Cash flow from financing activities RMETEHMESRERE
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE 29(c) (537,767) (550,882)
New bank borrowings FIGIRITIEE 29(c) 1,336,981 457,665
Payment of lease liabilities XNHEEAE 29(0) (8,811) (52,445)
Dividends paid to equity holders M= 7 A AR RS (606,819) (564,483)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests [) FE 28 ) 1 7 2 R S (12,500) (12,500)
Repurchase of shares 85 B %t - (7,739)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 171,084  (730384)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRRSESEEREMEHE 584,734 52,341
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April R4 1BHZRE MRS SEER 946,152 767,143
Currency translation differences INEEME R 14,242 126,668
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March MR3A31AZERERRSEEER 15 1,545,128 946,152

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with
the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textile
products with production base located in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") and Vietnam.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church
Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HKS"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2022.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The basis of preparation and principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied for all of the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and derivative financial instruments which were

measured at fair value.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’'d)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
(@) Amendments to standards to existing standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following amendments for the first time for the

reporting period commencing 1 April 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 - Phase 2

Amendments to HFKRS 16 Covid-19-related rent concessions
beyond 2021

All amendments to standards listed above do not have significant effect

on the Group's accounting policies.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 mEEEHIEZSHTHREME (F)
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but
are not effective
The following new and amended standards and interpretations have been
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 April

2021 and have not been early adopted by the Group:

2.1 WEEXE (F)
(b) B EMEK LN FETERRE
AEET
T3 BB B2 ] RSB &
BIA KRR - B K MN2021F4
B1BREBzHBFEELERAR

S EIAREREHM
Effective for RATREZZ
annual periods (11
beginning on or EEBRLEN
after
Amendments to Annual Annual improvements o HKFRSs 1 April 2022 EREER BRURARLEN AnF4AIR
Improvements Project 2018-2020 (IE31%) WIBFENE
LEENE
Amendments to Accounting  Merger Accounting for Common 1 April 2022 meyetirdl  ARESZEHN mF4AIA
Guideline 5 (Revised) Control Combination ESH(BTA)  eHRE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or 1 April 2023 BREHENE BEREANEATY ABFAIH
non-current (lE31%) EE 3
Amendments to HKAS 1and ~ Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 April 2023 BEEHENE Y HURORE  WnFAIA
HKFRS Practice statement 2 RERSMBRE
EHERASE)
H(BIR)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 April 2023 BREHEREE exfHdEE  WnF4AIR
(3%
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax Related to Assets and 1 April 2023 AheHENE) REE-RHNE AnF4AIA
Liabilities arising from a Single bR HEY ERBEZIEE
Transaction EREHE
Amendments to HKFRS 3, Narrow-scope amendments 1 April 2022 FRUBRSEN EEET WE4R1H
HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 3% BEe
EZ 68 RE
EETENEY
EACHES!
Amendments to HKFRS 10and  Sale or contribution of assets between 1 April 2023 FRUBRLSEN REFRABEL 0BE4A1H
HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or joint Z0%RERe  A%5ELRZ
venture HENERE  EWEELED
(3% ik |
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts and the related 1 April 2023 FRUBBEEN RREOREEE anF4AIR
amendments 2% HEs
HK(FRIC)-Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements 2k (ABHERE BEFRHES)
- Classification by the Borrower 1 April 2023 DEFE)-BE  _ER\HEAR BE4A1R
of a Term Loan that Contains a gom b4y
Repayment on Demand Clause BamTag
g

None of the above new standards and amendments to standards
is expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on

bt A s R 2 (E R TR
g HAREBRNE R ARKEA
BRI SRS M BERRARATR

foreseeable future transactions.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
2.2.1 Consolidation (Contd)

(a)

(b)

(©

Business combinations (Contd)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
balance sheet and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change in
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements
Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Interests in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost,
and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognise the
investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss after the date of acquisition and the investor's
share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
investments in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables,
the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial information
of associates has been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

The Group's interests in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference
between the cost of the associate and the Group’s share of the aggregate fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to “share of profit of an associate” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Associates (Cont'd)
If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence

is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised

in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate. Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are

recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.4 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal

reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating

decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive

directors collectively, who make strategic decisions.

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the group entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS, which is the
Company'’s functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuations where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss within “finance income” or “finance costs”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss within “other income and other gains — net”.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(b) Transactions and balances (Contd)

(c)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other
changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, are included in

other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii

=

all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign

entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEHEHETESHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 % - WERSZE

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress are stated
at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery and
leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment on which construction
work has not been completed. It is carried at cost which includes
construction expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment losses.
On completion, construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses if any.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any
gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases
of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on other assets other than construction in progress are
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs (less
estimated residual values, if any) over their estimated useful lives at the annual
rates, as follows:

Buildings 4% - 5%
Plant and machinery 10% — 20%
Leasehold improvements 20% - 33% or shorter of the lease terms

Furniture and equipment 20% - 33%
Motor vehicles 20% - 25%
Computer software 10%

Depreciation is not provided for construction in progress until the asset is
completed and available for use.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with
the carrying amount are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows which are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each balance sheet date.

2.8 Financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and
those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in
debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the
investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business
model for managing those assets changes.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEHEHETESHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd) 28 EMEE (&)
(i) Recognition and derecognition (ii) TR R AL R
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on ERBERHEERMEEER
trade-date, the date on which the group commits to purchase or sell the SEER  XHABAREAR
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash BERLEZEEZA - ERS
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred MEEWPESREZ2EFEE
and the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of MR EE MASEEEE
ownership. 15 FT B #E 2 P /B B\ B A0 i B o
B SRVEERK IR -
(iii) Measurement (ii) 51 £
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value TIAHERE - AEBERemERE
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, CONP R EDIINQ NIz /N = s
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the ANEEHNEREE) EEEBR
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value KEeMEENI IR EZ
through profit or loss are expensed in the consolidated statement of profit CRMEE - BAABFAEBEN
or loss. TREENR IR ARG B
RIMERZ -
Debt instruments EEITA
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's BER LR ZBRETEIRNRAE
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics EEBEEE X BEARZEE
of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the ZHEREFH - AEEBEE
Group classifies its debt instruments: BIAEDER=B=8HA :
Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash - BN BEREENRS
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal MEZEE WZERESRE
and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt BRIz A RKAE Bl
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is BSHRLRET 2 o 1R IR S AK
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the consolidated ANEtE B I IEE R — &
statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. HZEBIRENIRESEE
Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance B BE £ E B SR ORI (B B
income using the effective interest rate method. RABRRER ZSomE
EMA B ARAERF &=
EFF AN ©
Fair value through other comprehensive income: Assets that are held - BARERAHMEBEEEA
for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial FEREEG OB RE R
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of EEMEECEE MZEE
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other EReREEEINAE R
comprehensive income (OCl). Movements in the carrying amount are FE - REARBEGTAEM
taken through OCl, except for the recognition of impairment gains 2EBA (EtE2EBA) T
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses 2 REBEZEEHFHAEM
which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is ZEBA - ERERER R
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in B EIEE - FIERAR
OCl is reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of profit ERREBERIN - REER
or loss and recognised in ‘other income and gains - net’ Interest IEERE - AN EMER
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using AR Rt =k /BB
the effective interest rate method. HEZEN ) EERGER

RI[E A IA T M — %
BIHR - ZFTREENT
BUWARAERMEIRFT A
AT
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(iii) Measurement (Contd)

Debt instruments (Contd)

-+ Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss within “other income
and gains — net”in the period in which it arises. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in the “finance income”.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCl, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Dividends from such investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as “other income and other gains
- net"when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in “other income and other gains — net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at fair
value through OCl are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses the expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost using historical and forward looking data.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables and amounts due from associates, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables. See Note 3.1(b) for further details.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9

2.10

2.12

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value at the end of each balance sheet date. The method of recognising the
resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.

Derivative instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair
value of these derivative instruments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work-in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. See Note 2.8(iv) for a description of
the Group's impairment policies.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

When any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity
attributable to owners of the company until the shares are cancelled or
reissued.

Trade, bills and other payables

Trade, bills and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade, bills and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEHEHEITETSHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.16 Borrowings (Cont'd) 2168 & (&)
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation BRGESDINANETERT &
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The HEERRBEEERBERBR Bl
difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has RkEBREHEME S BEEZHAR
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration ENeRBEE (BEEMNEEBIER
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is SEEFCEAEAR)  REBEES
recognised in profit or loss as finance costs. ERERERRIABEE -
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an BESERRDEE EAEEESE
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months GREEMECEEEAEENEEEA
after the balance sheet date. B 12M@ AEBRID
Borrowing costs 1& LK
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the BEERNKE BEIRIEESERE
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised EN—MEBEERKE gREE
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset ek R EE LT VR E RS S R H
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take MERML EEBEERTELER
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. ERRFfA 7 pe BB AT R E AR SIHE

WERE °

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific EFHEEERARGEREERE
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted E"J/Hﬂﬁzﬂ fiv B 1% B B E K A ER R
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. & PRI ERABESERE

AAC BB B A R o

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are HEM AR ANREERREZHE -
incurred.
2.17 Current and deferred income tax 217V RIELE RSB
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax HA 2 B 18 3 B #E B HR RN GE R
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to HoBRTAEAMEEMKRASEELE
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive wA TR 2 TH B M E SN - BIIELEAR
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other EEERTHER -EZBEAT  BIE
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. D RIEE A 2 EA K BB =
RIER -
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws BN ERFR 1S %R%FHM‘“ZK 751'”%“
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries BB NFIREERAIEBEREEE
where the Company's subsidiaries and associates and joint ventures %%RH&J\ZI%E%,\\E.%EI M E
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates ERMH 2 BBEREE - BIREiE
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable FRRESEDIREFTIRR 2 155 E BT
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where HAFBBRFR 2NN  WEEE BN
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax TR TE AR MBS R 2 2 T K
authorities. BERAE -

EXHBERERAT | 2021/2022 F3 79



80

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to
control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

()

()

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’
services up to the end of the balance sheet date and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Bonus plan

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Retirement benefits

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution plan is a retirement benefit
scheme under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods.

The schemes are generally funded through payments to state or
trustee-administered funds. The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions
are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.18 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(e) Termination benefits

)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated
by the Group before the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
balance sheet date are discounted to their present value.

Share-based compensation

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for example, an
entity’s share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
statement of profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEHEHEITESHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.18 Employee benefits (Cont'd) 218 EEA (&)

(f)  Share-based compensation (Contd)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Contd)

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution to the subsidiary. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value,
is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent equity accounts.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.20 Revenue and income recognition

(a)

b)

(c)

()

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Sales of goods

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
textile products. Revenue are recognised when control of the products
has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the customer,
the customer has accepted the products and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specified
location and the risk of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
the customers.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised based on the price specified
for each order.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group recognised
its down payments from customers under other payables and accruals
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Sub-contracting income
The Group provides ad-hoc sub-contracting service to customers. Sub-
contracting income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Handling income
The Group provides handling service for purchases of raw materials on
behalf. Handling income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease periods.

2021 /2022 Annual Report

HEMBRENE (B)

2

REEEHETZEHRREE (H)

220 AR B

(a)

)

(c)

(d)

HE Ea

AEBETEREHBER 2 BE
kES BERNEHEESEE
EPHIRNERTEPE)
MEFEEMEmR AW EATAE
FEEPEMEMNRBHER
B ARBERRBRA - ZEMN
BRETHE  AREREBXRA
REEBERTFE APEER -

HEERNBATIERSNTE
EEHNEBER -

EURIER XN E R HER - R
E R EEN KB BRI B HLE
BB T ARERR - M AXBE X
BB BRI -

BHAEBNEPEANKRERERE
B A Z Bl ST (S R B RERR o A
SEBURMEFL ZIIEREAE
ERERZHMENKIERERT
BERTHER -

2 ERA
AEBRFEBRATPRMES
BR o 5 BUWARIR IR E
HERR

V- N
AEBRKABERMEHR MR
AR o TR WA IR B AR 7 B

2
o ©

HE A
KEBRYZBSWA TR
BABBOEKTER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.21 Interestincome
Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using
effective interest method is recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset.

2.22 Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

2.23 Earning per shares
(i) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

The profit attributable to equity holders of the company, excluding
any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary shares.

By the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(i) Dilutive earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination
of basic earnings per share taking into account:

The after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares; and

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.24 Leases

Leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at
the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are
held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following
lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable (if any);

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and

conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent
third-party financing received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HmEEHEHETESHHEME (&)
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.24 Leases (Cont'd) 2247 & (&)
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The HENFRARE R E KA 2
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to Do BEKRAERBANIEEINRG - 5
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the N2 & RN A EesEs IR A = —
liability for each period. B
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: CREEERKAE  BEUATE
I8 :

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; - RVGIEREaEZEE

any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less - RFE Ak ZAER 2 EAHE

any lease incentives received (if any); and ENF - R Rz ERBEER

ENQGUES DI 3

any initial direct costs - FEVBEERKAR
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the FAEAE —RIZEREINEENR®
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is REHESR (UREERE)HE
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is WE - WASBEAEEETERE R
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. B AIEREEENBBEENT

ERFEHAFE -

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets HEHHAEREEEEEHER#
are recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short- NRBREFENERTERBFAXZ -
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value MEHEEEESR R 2EASKUT
assets comprise small items of office equipment. ZHE - REEEERRERAERE

B/NEER -

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is AEBEADAARKERERERD
recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note HEWAREBHANESEEZRKARN
31(b)). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added R (ME310)  BEEEHEE
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expenses ERMVISEREKAMARREENK
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective MmE - WAREBRNAEZAERAN
leased assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet based on their HRERER AR -[EARHEEE
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting BHEEFAGEEERER - HER
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard. T EERE  AEEEFYHALME

AFDRFAEEENG T EERIEDLER
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.25

2.26

2.27

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group has
complied with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to US Dollars (“US$”), Renminbi (“/RMB”) and Vietnamese Dongs
("VND"). The Group manages its foreign exchange risks by performing
regular review and monitoring its foreign exchange exposure. The
Group hedges certain of its exposure to reduce the risk involved as
appropriate.

As HKS is pegged to USS, management believes that the exchange
rate risk for translations between HKS$ and USS$ do not have material
impact to the Group.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau and
Vietnam. Except for certain cash and bank balances and certain inter-
company receivables denominated in foreign currencies, transactions
are mainly conducted in the functional currency of the respective
group entity. The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities is considered by the Directors to be minimal.

The Group uses forward currency contracts to economically hedge
part of its foreign exchange risk. These forward currency contracts do
not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss. As at 31 March 2022, all of the forward currency
contracts are settled.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) ReBRRME (F)
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’'d) 3 MERER (H)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3.1 Eﬁﬁ%ﬂlﬁlﬂ % (&)
(a) Market risk (Contd) @) THEER (&)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Contd) () ShE R @ (42 )
The table below illustrates the sensitivity as at the end of the reporting TREEARERRNSSE
period to a reasonably possible change in the respectively exchange EERB 2 NEEBESEERN

rates against the functional currency of the respective group entities,
with all other variables held constant, to the profit for the year ended
31 March 2022, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange impact on
translation of financial assets and liabilities denominated in these
foreign currencies.

Change in
exchange rate
ExEH
2022 2022 F
If USS strengthens/weakens against RMB X TH ARBHE,/ R E +1%/-1%
If US$ strengthens/weakens against IND ¥ i EAME, B2 E +1%/-1%
If RMB strengthens/weakens against HKS A RBE B TAME, A +1%/-1%
2021 2021 F
If US$ strengthens/weakens against RMB =TT AR AE,/ B2 & +1%/-1%
If US$ strengthens/weakens against IND ST ¥ HiF B A A, B (& +1%/-1%
If RMB strengthens/weakens against HKS i AR BB T AME, B E +1%/-1%
(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, except for unlisted financial product,
bank deposits, lease liabilities and bank loans, details of which are
disclosed in Note 14, Note 15, Note 7 and Note 18 respectively, the
Group has no other significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

The Group's bank deposits and bank loans are subject to variable rates
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group
manages its interest rate risk by performing regular reviews and
continually monitoring its interest rate exposures. The Group has not

used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 HHEBRER(#E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3 M EBEE (&)
(a) Market risk (Contd) @) THEER (&)
(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Contd) () B mERALEFE(E)
If the market interest rates for cash and bank balance and bank loans WRE RBITHEBRRITE
had been 50 basis points (2021: 50 basis points) higher/lower with all RZHIBF R EF TS0
other variables held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year H2(2021F 1502 - mE
ended 31 March 2022 would have been approximately HK$457,000 Al A REFTE  REE
lower/higher (2021:HK$1,560,000 higher/lower). HZE2002F383BLFE

i ) ¥ R 18 0 49 457,000
7 7T (2021 4 ¢ #hn R A
1,560,000/ 7T ) °

(b) Credit risk ) 1EEmEE
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group’s credit risk arises from trade R2022F 20213 HA31H R
and bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, amounts due from EENEERRREENERR
associates, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, short-term ZB RekAEMBYKE  E
deposits and cash and bank balances. Ut A RIFRIE - BAAERA

BaEmemEE MHTERURK
BeRRITHER -

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits HE R & FEEE UL AR
71750
(i) Risk management () EfREHE
Substantially all of the cash and bank balances, as detailed in Note 15, AP RIS EREE A - AT AT
are held in major financial institutions located in Hong Kong, the PRC, ERERBITHEBRERRNE
Macau and Vietnam. with high credit rating. B RE R RBEASE

(i) Impairment of cash and bank deposits (i) Bz RIR7TTIFAE
Cash and bank deposits are also subject to impairment requirement of Re RBITFRNEZRBRE
HKFRS 9. Management is of the view that the Group’s cash and bank PEEETERE 9SMARE T A
deposits is placed in those banks which are independently rated with BE-ERERR AKEF
a high credit rating. Management does not expect any material losses W ® RIRITFERORITL
from non-performance by these banks as they have no default history B EREBSEENR -
in the past. Thus, the loss allowance provision recognised for cash and ZERITBALEELNTE
bank deposits is close to zero as at 31 March 2022 and 2021. EEEBHIASRARETE

HmalBAgEEE - Bt R
20224 K 2021 F3 A31 HEE
Re RIBRITHERFTIRNEBE q
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BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Contd)
Trade and bills receivables

()

(i)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Risk management

The Group monitors the outstanding debts from its customers
individually due to the concentration of credit risk. Management
assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account
its financial position, past experience and other factors. The
compliance with credit limits by customers is regularly monitored by
management.

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables.

As the Group's historical credit loss experience indicates different loss
patterns in different geographical region, the calculation of expected
credit losses on trade and bill receivables are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
the debtors’ credit history and the ageing profile in different
geographical region. Subsequently, the expected credit losses on
trade and bills receivables are adjusted to reflect current and forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

The Group identified the Gross Domestic Products ("“GDP") of the
countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based
on expected changes in these factors.

2021 /2022 Annual Report
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 MERER (H)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 3 M EBEE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Contd) b) 15 E /@ (&)
Trade and bills receivables (Contd) JENG BR 3 R 15 (48 )
(ii) Impairment of trade and bills receivables (Contd) (i) FEY IR R 1% 6 18 (&)
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the loss allowance for trade and bills R 20229 K% 20213 A31H
receivables was determined as follows. The expected credit losses BLEWAR B E I E R AT IR
below also incorporated forward looking information. HEBBEETET - TR
TEEEEBBECMARIEE
Ao
Not yet 1to 31to Over
past due 30 days 60 days 60 days Total
KEH 1Z308 31F60A EiB60H #st
31 March 2022 202253 H31H
Trade receivables - FEURBR R4 B8 (T8 T)
Gross (HKS'000) 878,740 50,164 14,772 3,520 947,196
Weighted average expected Il T TEHIEIE R (%)
loss rate (%) 0.02% 0.21% 1.36% 32.39% 0.17%
Loss allowance (HK$'000) B EREE (TET) 157 107 201 1,140 1,605
Not yet 1to 31to Over
past due 30 days 60 days 60 days Total
REH  1ZE30H 31E60H  #BB60H &t
31 March 2021 202153 H31H
Trade receivables - FEMRBR A B8 (T8 )
Gross (HKS'000) 821,073 28,202 12,789 3,511 865,575
Weighted average expected  Jl#E T T8 B 1E K (%)
loss rate (%) 0.02% 0.59% 2.45% 38.28% 0.23%
Loss allowance (HK$'000) EEEE (TET) 201 165 313 1,344 2,023
Impairment losses on trade and bills receivables is presented as YRR R R R ERE EER
provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables within B8R T N 51 3R A R MR AR
operating profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written MEERERE - RERE T
off are credited against the same line item. R M FIBERRA—IEE
FOER o
The loss allowances for trade receivables as at 31 March 2022 and 20229 K% 2021 F3 A31H
2021 reconcile to the opening loss allowances are presented in Note FEWERFHROEIERE
12. B4 ) R 1B R 0 AR RO BN
1227 -
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(b) Credit risk (Contd)
Derivative financial instrument and unlisted financial product classified as
FVPL

(i)

(i)

Risk management

The Group had investments in derivative financial instrument
- currency forward contract and unlisted financial product (the
“investments”). The Group monitors the credit risks of its investments
through evaluation of financial data provided by the investees.

Credit risk of derivatives financial instrument and unlisted financial
product

The unlisted financial product were entered into with banks with
sound credit ratings and the Group did not consider there was
material exposure to credit risks. As at 31 March 2022, the maximum
exposure of the unlisted financial product was HK$44,018,000 (2021:
The derivative financial instrument — currency forward contract
were entered into with banks with sound credit ratings and the
Group did not consider there was material exposure to credit risks.
As at 31 March 2021, the maximum exposure of derivatives was
HK$$15,437,000).

Other financial assets at amortised cost

(i)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Risk management

The directors of the Group consider the probability of default upon
initial recognition of the assets and whether there has been significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition. The following indicators
are considered:

actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the company’s ability to meet its obligations;
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 BKERBRERE (H)
3 M EBEE (&)
b) IEEREE (&)
B AR B 2 EE
(%)
w,@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@
A EEENERNTE

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Contd)
Other financial assets at amortised cost (Contd)

(i) Risk management (Contd)

actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of .

the company; Hﬂij@:@b

significant changes in the expected performance and behavior NAEBMRRRITRANE
of the company, including changes in the payment status of the AEH  BREE=ZFHN
third party. ORI E g o

(i) 128 55 5K 7K 31 B 69 Bt %
WG EMIREITES - flanfE
T A PR B B 2K 55 B 5l 5T 8 X
TE - BlgMEemEE - B
write off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments/repayable BB AREINEHRES
demanded greater than 365 days past due. Where the receivables 78 {8 18 R IB 1 & 508 18 365
R AL EBIEURIE S HR

(i) Impairment of other financial assets at amortised costs
Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable

expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group categories a receivable for

have been written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement

activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are A o 4 FE W FRIE B 3
made, these are recognised in profit or loss. iz IS @1)3@74%&%?%@@@%”

A E)E UL B B B R M R

i 142 120 35 TR ’aATAIE\@E(‘\TE\ﬁ
RRER °

RE ARG BR RO H Al &

Other financial assets at amortised cost include certain deposits and

other receivables. These financial assets are considered to be low
credit risk primarily because they had no history of default and the
counterparties had a strong capacity to meet their contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. The Group has assessed that the
expected credit losses for these receivables are immaterial under 12
months expected losses method. Thus, the loss allowance provision
recognised for these balances is close to zero as at 31 March 2022 and
2021.

BEPRAETESREME
WRIE - WS S REEWR S
EERBE FERAHEIE
BHEEBEEF AR AR
NEFEHRHEEHR SR
2R -AEEZTERE
218 ATERRE 1B 5 0% - FEIR
EFMBEHEEBRBYTE
Koo B It - 72022 F K 2021
F3H31H Exuxiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁw
BB EEREER
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash

and the availability of funding through adequate committed credit

facilities. The Group's primary cash requirements are for additions and

upgrades to property, plant and equipment, purchases of land, capital

injections into subsidiaries, and payments for purchases and operating

expenses and unexpected cash outflow due to the COVID-19 pandemic

or other unforeseen crisis. The Group finances its working capital

requirements through funds generated from its operations, bank loans

and other borrowings.

The Group’'s policy is to monitor current and expected liquidity

requirements regularly to ensure it maintains sufficient cash and cash

equivalents and has available funding through adequate amount of

committed credit facilities to meet its working capital requirements.

The tables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant

maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the consolidated

balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts

disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

As at 31 March 2022

HEMBRENE (B)

3

B EREE (&)
3.1 M EREE (&)
© B E

REZRBMRRERESHFTT
BErzHReWBBARREZEERE
EREL AKEZESFRE
ZARRERETDE BER
BiE - LHEE - WBARNEE
L I RBERREERT MU
AR 2019BMRBmE R HE AT
TER 7 E#3BERZ IR S
Ml e REEBREEELACE
& IRITE R R EH A & KA B
BEEST R -

AEEZBRRBERERRER
BHRBE S ENK  {EMERAR
SEERHzZAERAEEER
BRBBRRZEEEERRTE
T AREEEEERTR

TRARBEIEAER I RALE
ERmesEEIEA0NE A
ZRHHEzMBEEBRZD
e NMRPBEBEZEEA/ANM
AFERTRE -

A2022%3 A31H

On Within Over

demand 1 year 1 year Total

RER 1R 1F0E st

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FTHET FTHExT FHET

Bank loans IRITER 1,453,683 = = 1,453,683
Loan from a non-controlling — BB B 2 B e il 14

interest of a subsidiary =R E R - = 126,218 126,218

Trade and bills payables FER R R R IK - 592,691 - 592,691

Lease liabilities HEAE - 28,004 15,918 43,922

Accruals and other payables FEETIER RE Mt ERN
RIB = 37,330 = 37,330
1,453,683 658,025 142,136 2,253,844

26 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2021 /2022 Annual Report



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMKBREMNE (E)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Liquidity risk (Contd)
As at 31 March 2021

HERAKEE (&)
3 M EBEE (&)
() Bt (4B)
BK2021F3A31H

On Within Over

demand 1 year 1 year Total

REXR 1TFERN TEELA E st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T T F& T FE T

Bank loans RITER 645,443 - - 645,443
Loan from a non-controlling — AP 8 A B e ) 1

interest of a subsidiary EmREER - - 125,375 125,375

Trade and bills payables FE R R B IK - 718,617 - 718,617

Derivative financial instruments  $7T4 4 @ T B - 3,282 - 3,282

Lease liabilities HEAE - 35,073 14,734 49,807

Accruals and other payables EFTIER R
E b FE A 5RR - 46,660 - 46,660
645,443 803,632 140,109 1,589,184

TERBEREBEE K WA ZEE
EEFBREX AEEESRE
REEGRZRITERZ S
o ZEFRBENE DI XE
HZMEBMR - At ZFFHA
BB EXAMEA AN IRE
KR EEE A PTIRE Z 3R -

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of the Group’s bank
loans with repayable on demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The amounts included
interest payments computed using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand”
time band in the maturity analysis contained above.

FARAREZMBRR  EEY

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the Directors do not

consider that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretions to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such loans will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment date as set out in
the loan agreements.

Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings subject to a repayable on demand
clause based on scheduled repayments (including related interest
payable):

BEARGHBERERDA

TRBI/ITE AT RETT I EAEFIA
ERAEFER -EEZRA/RER
R RIBE R AP Z BEE
BEREHRKRER -

FE DT —RIBELE B R AR

BERBRERRRAZRITEE
(BHERRE BN S

| 2021/2022 3§
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION \-
MBEN 1

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 MXRAKER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.1 MEEBKREE (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Contd) (c) 7Bt ER (&)

31 March 2022 20223 A31H - 530,674 223,589 742,541 - 1,496,804

31 March 2021 20213 A31H - 648,515 - - - 648,515

The table below analyses the Group’s unlisted financial product and TRABZREAZIEAERS RASE
derivative financial instruments which will be settled on a gross basis into EEEBEANEEA 2T H
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance Mz AEREELE TS
sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table BMEMRITESRIAZD -
are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. REFPEEZBE R RYTT

HADRE -

At 31 March 2022: 7A2022F3 8318 :

Unlisted financial product: JFETmERMER :

Inflow mA - - 44,018 - 44,018
Outflow pigas! = = - - -
At 31 March 2021: R2021F3/8318:

Forward currency contracts: REAEELH :

Inflow mA - 3,175 12,262 - 15,437
Outflow inpes! - (2,108) (1,174) - (3,282)

PaC|f' c Textiles Holdlngs Limited nnual Report



FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 MEERER(H)
32ESRAMER

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group'’s
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, draw down or
repay debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
total capital. Total debt includes borrowings and bills payables as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet, and total capital is the amount of "equity” as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The gearing ratios were as follows:

FEBESERABRREREE
B E  UARFRHE®E
B A A B A2 Flas - W4
BREZBEREBABEE KR °
BT RS REEARER  REEA
BREREBRRARRKN ZRESE M
RERBERESD  BITHR  RMEE
BER -

HEMRAZMER  AEENEARE
HERERER - W RIZREHER
Efﬁuﬁmwﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬂﬁi& R CRIRETOS
REERBRMIIZERERENRE
NEERBBERGEEEREBERMT
Z#ezm| c BRBELEWT :

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4

HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FHEIT

Borrowings BE 1,579,901 770,818
Bills payables JERT & 17,663 21,435
Total debt [ER Tk 1,597,564 792,253
Total capital BERETE 3,430,524 3,353,625
Gearing ratio BEXRAGEEE 46.6% 23.6%

The increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to increase in bank borrowings in
the current year.

BEARABERENEZARRIFE
B IRTT R EIE AN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.3 Fair value estimation

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income carries at fair value while the carrying amounts of
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits, trade and
bills receivables, deposits, other receivables, amounts due from associates,
trade and bills payables, accrual and other payables (excluding employees
benefits related payable, provisions and other taxes payable), lease liabilities
and borrowings approximate their fair values due to their short maturities
and/or bear interest rate at market. The nominal values less estimated credit
adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one
year are assumed to approximate their fair values.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried at fair value
as at 31 March 2022 and 2021, by level of inputs to valuation techniques used
to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 12021 /2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

HEMBRENE (B)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 BBABRER (&)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd) 3.3 A AEME (&)
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are TRAINRAEBKR2022F3A31H
measured at fair value at 31 March 2022. EBARBEFECEERAE -
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E E2E E3E Foh
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
THER THERT FTHER TERT
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through 3% A /o B A E b 2 E A
other comprehensive income BepEE (KsE0)
(Note 10)
- Club debentures -2#E5 427 = = 427
Financial assets at fair value through ¥ A B ABEH S @
profit or loss (Note 14) EE (s 14)
- Unlisted financial product —FEmemER - - 44,018 44,018
427 - 44,018 44,445
The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are TERINRAEBEKR2021F3831H
measured at fair value at 31 March 2021. BARBEFECEERAE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E oyl EE= st
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
FAT FHET THET THET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through  Z A B AE M2 E A
other comprehensive income MepEE (M)
(Note 10)
- Club debentures —-GHES 853 - - 853
Financial assets at fair value through E QB ABZH S #
profit or loss (Note 14) B (Mt 14)

- Derivative financial instruments —fTEEMITA
Forward foreign currency RHMNES D
contracts - 15,437 - 15,437

853 15,437 - 16,290

Liabilities &8 y

Financial liabilities at fair value BARBEGFABRZNSH

through profit or loss (Note 14) BE (T 14)

- Derivative financial instruments —TEEMIA q
Forward foreign currency EHINEE D .‘
contracts - 3,282 - 3,282 V

There were no transfers between levels during the years ended 31 March 2022 B E2022F K2021F3A3181EF V

and 2021. EEBRzEWEEE - ‘
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry Group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the closing bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, specific valuation techniques used by the
Group to value level 1 and 2 financial instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using
forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

The level 3 instrument represented the unlisted financial product classified
as FVPL. Management is of the view that the investment is made on 31 March
2022, the balance sheet date, for which the fair value approximates its carrying
amount therefore no special valuation techniques were used in determining
the fair value of the unlisted financial product.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 12021 /2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of interests in associates
Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group's interests in
associates, in particular when they consider objective evidence of impairment
exists, such as the quoted market value of listed associate having fallen below
its carrying amount or significant adverse changes in the market environment,
including, among others, the economic impact of the unprecedented
COVID-19 on the associates and the countries in which they operate.

In determining the recoverable amounts of interest in associates,
management considered the higher of the value in use and fair value less
cost to disposal. In determining value-in-use, an entity estimates either: (a) its
share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associates and proceeds on disposal, or (b) the present value
of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from dividends to be received
and proceeds on disposal. Any impairment loss is recognised by writing down
the interests in associates. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Income taxes, deferred taxes and other taxes

(c)

(d

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

—

The Group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions where its subsidiaries
operate. Significant judgement is required in determining provisions for
income taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such

determination is made.

The Group is also exposed to other taxes and duties. Significant judgement
is required in determining these provisions. Where the final outcomes of
these matters differ from the actual results, such difference will impact the
provisions made and the earnings stated in the statement of profit or loss.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally relate to tax losses,
depends on the expectation of future taxable profit that will be available
against which tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different. Management has performed an assessment on the
recoverability of these deferred tax assets and consider that the realisation of
these tax losses probable and no impairment provision is required as at year
end.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates (Note 3.1(b)). The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward — looking estimates at the balance sheet
date.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these

estimates at each balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)
(e) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

(f)

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may
differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.

Impairment of non-current assets

Non-current assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,
including, among others, the economic impact of the unprecedented
COVID-19 pandemic on the operations of the Group and the countries in
which it operates. The recoverable amounts have been determined based
on the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair values less cost to disposal.
These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the assets in the
business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group's reported balance sheet and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future
cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

HEMBRENE (B)

5 ZEMEHR

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company collectively, who review the Group’s internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

As all of the Group's business operations relate to the manufacturing and
trading of textile products with similar economic characteristics, the executive
directors review the performance of the Group as a single segment, which covers
operations conducted by subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Vietnam.
The executive directors review resources allocation and assess performance of the
Group on a regular basis based on the following financial information:

BELKERARE ([EFRKEREEDE
RERSARBHNTES  REHAK
BZABE2R AFERALHIEER -

A A SR T R MR R E A
BRLEASENS R EH  NE
EiRiEE 05 (RENEE R
mE g B 2 A S B T5) B
AEET KR RITE R NER AT
BAK CHEMAEEOERHER
RITRB A

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
Revenue - sales of goods WA-HEER (RFERRERNER)

(recognised at a point in time) (Note iii) (PR 5 Gii)) 6,066,310 5,384,897
Gross profit eSS 776,318 861,689
Gross profit margin (%) FF &K (%) 12.8% 16.0%
Operating expenses X 251,704 265,992
Operating expenses/Revenue (%) BERI WA (%) 4.1% 4.9%
EBITDA (Note (if)) FE - BIE - WEREHEASFM (M) 838,727 1,010,016
EBITDA/Revenue (%) FIB - BiE - & RBHADEM, WA (%) 13.8% 18.8%
Finance income LR L ON 16,125 23,347
Finance costs 1 7 B AR 21,975 14,572
Depreciation and amortisation WEREHE GIAFEENAREERT)

(included in cost of sales and

operating expenses) 186,810 180,426
Share of profits of associates pak el A WNEIb: 34,890 40,647
Income tax expense FT3 A X 66,832 103,026
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company AN BI#E 3 B A B 7 572,677 721,491
Net profit margin (%) FHF 2= (9%) 9.4% 13.4%
Total assets EESE 5,944,194 5,211,364
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company AR B 15 H AEEEZ 3,419,125 3,337,921
Cash and bank balances ReERITER 1,545,128 957,475
Borrowings BE 1,579,901 770,818
Inventories 78 1,236,784 1,223,425
Inventory turnover days (Note (iv)) FEEE A (M) 85 95
Trade and bills receivables [EN R R R R’ 945,591 863,552
Trade and bills receivables turnover days EAER R ERAERH (W)

(Note (v)) 54 54
Trade and bills payables [ENER R L B’ 592,691 718,617
Trade and bills payables turnover days (Note (iv)) ERNERRERAE A& (M) 45 55

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

Notes:

(i) To supplement the consolidated results of the Group prepared in accordance with
HKFRS, certain non-HKFRS financial measures, including EBIDTA, EBITDA/Revenue
inventories turnover days, trade and bills receivables turnover days, and trade and
bills payables turnover days have been presented in this report. The Company’s
management believes that the non-HKFRS financial measures provide investors
with clearer view on the Group'’s financial results, and with useful supplementary
information to assess the performance of the Group’s strategic operations.
Nevertheless, the use of these non-HKFRS financial measures has limitations as
an analytical tool. These non-HKFRS financial measures should be considered in
addition to, not as a substitute for, analysis of the Company’s financial performance

prepared in accordance with HKFRS.

(i) EBITDA is defined as profit for the year before finance income, finance costs,
income tax expense, depreciation and amortisation.

(iii

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has recognized contract liabilities amounting to

HK$5,503,000 (2021: HK$10,380,000) relating to contracts with customers.

For the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group recognised revenue of
HKS$10,380,000 (2021: HK$18,898,000) related to carried-forward contract liabilities.

(iv) The turnover days are calculated by the simple average of the beginning of the
year and the end of the year balances over costs of sales.

(v) The turnover days are calculated by the simple average of the beginning of the
year and the end of the year balances over revenue.

A reconciliation of EBITDA to total profit before income tax is provided as follows:
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(iif)

(iv
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REATRBERBEF U HIRE LR
NG AEE ETIHTEMBRSE
A At E (BEMNE BB HER
BEmaN, WA FEEEEH - E
WERF R RIpEE A B BN RN E
BREBHE)ERNARENZS - AL
RIEEERE FRBMBE RS LR
Bt B AR ELEREEBM A EE Y
TR - WRHEE BB R AR
REBRBELENRE - A EAZ
SFBBHBHREERNMBAEELD
T ZAGFERRIE - hIFFBHBIRE
AR P TS ET ERBAR RRIRE B 15 W
SEARBENRR B ERIRD TR
EMEERAE -

FE TR - 3B R IR A BT 3R
AR BRA -~ MBERA -~ FEHRHE
X EREENFEE RN

R2022F3A831B  AEERETFE
HIFER B E 495,503,000 7T (2021 4F =
10,380,000 7T ) °

HE2022F K2021F3A31 8 IFF
B AEERAESNBERR A
10,380,000 7T (2021 4F : 18,898,000 76
JL) °

BEABIRFNEERGEHR 2B EFY
B A E AR H

BEABIRFNEERGEH 2B EFY
B ABAGHE -

B HIE - TEREIENENEMRE
B AT A A5 2 R SRR T

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 6

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FERT FABT

EBITDA FIE - FIE - EREHEARF 838,727 1,010,016
Depreciation and amortisation e R (186,810) (180,426)
Finance income R 3 N 16,125 23,347
Finance costs B 7% B AR (21,975) (14,572)
Profit before income tax FT 18 B A1 4 7 646,067 838,365
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION V-
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMKBREMNE (E)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5 oHER (&)
The Group's revenue represents sales of goods. An analysis of revenue by REENBAEERFEE - Bk m (A
geographical location, as determined by the destination where the products were EmXffz BN AE%E) ElH 2 AR S
delivered, is as follows: W
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TERT FAT
Vietnam 2 =] 2,584,158 2,508,157
PRC H 1,351,264 1,024,559
Bangladesh &= nHr 331,395 277,483
Hong Kong 58 296,683 326,929
Haiti T 284,447 263,222
Sri Lanka HEBE-R 278,263 216,495
America EM 238,466 194,063
Cambodia SR 217,262 182,539
Indonesia e 209,366 189,065
Jordan o= 88,840 35,256
Africa FEM 85,532 53,318
India HE 53,856 51,354
Other Asian countries = UEEN IETE 46,448 61,679
Others non-Asian countries HETMER 330 778
6,066,310 5,384,897
For the year ended 31 March 2022, customer A and customer B accounted for HZE2NF3IANALFE BEFAK
approximately 36% (2021: 39%) and 16% (2021: 18%) of the Group's revenue, EP B AlG A& B A KA 36% (2021
respectively. All other customers individually accounted for less than 8% of the F 1 39%) & 16% (20214 @ 18%) © & =
Group's revenue for years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. 202F R2021E3A3IBILEFEE A

HipE P& BEARBRALER8%

The Group's non-current assets (excluding interests in associates and deferred AEBZIERBEE (TREREZ QA
income tax assets) are located in the following geographical areas: R MELEMSHERE) LR T i
& -
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THERT FH&T
PRC H 1,259,264 1,263,674
Hong Kong BE 10,276 10,815
Vietnam e 476,242 431,601
1,745,782 1,706,090
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMKBREMNE (E)

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 6 VX BERRZH
Leasehold
improvements,
Plantand furniture and Motor Computer Construction
Buildings machinery equipment vehicles software in progress Total
BENE
6 KA
£ BEREE R RE E{ ERIE &t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TiEn i TR TR TR L i
At 1 April 2020 R2020F4818
Cost A 1,172,825 2473001 432973 35672 101,250 46493 4262214
Accumulated depreciation  R3HHTE (548,590) (1943,764) (290,629) (28501) (40697) - (2852,177)
Net book amount FHFE 624235 529237 142,348 7171 60,553 46493 1410,037

Yearended 31 March 2021 EZ2021 E3A3NALLEE

Opening net bookamount KA FE 624,235 529,37 14,348 7 60553 46,493 1410037
Additions TE 1128 33367 29151 762 1098 45,684 111,190
Disposals and write-off HE S (2526) (1,094) (1,567) (17) - - (5,204)
Depreciation (Note 23) E (W) (52620) (73477) (36,699) 3,29) (8982) - (175070)
Transfers 3 2910 9,119 8 - - (12114) -
Currency translation differences JME#EZ 5 39,301 39,059 9436 803 - 374 933
Closing net bookamount ~~ FXEREFE 612428 536211 142,758 5403 52669 83,787 1433276
At 31 March 2021 R0N%E3R31R

Cost A 1,209,319 2,553,452 466,426 37,220 102,348 83,787 4,452,552
Accumulated depreciation  Z3tHTE (596,891) (2,017,241) (323,668) (31,797) (49,679) = (3,019,276)
Net book amount FEFE 612,428 536,211 142,758 5423 52,669 83,787 1,433,276

Yearended 31 March 2022  EZ20253831BLEE

Opening net bookamount ~ EIEAFE 612,428 536,211 142,758 5423 52,669 83,787 1,433,276
Additions AE 110 9,901 11,219 1,867 683 96,277 120,057
Disposals and write-off e (128) (747) (1,461) (74) - - (2,410)
Depreciation (Note 23) HE (W) (58,892) (77,118) (33,190) (2,253) (9,008) = (180,461)
Transfers &% 921 39,026 2,557 278 = (42,782) =
Currency translation differences JME#E 28 38,880 16,752 3441 638 - 12,976 72,687
Closing netbookamount ~~ EREE S 593,319 524,025 125,324 5,879 44,344 150,258 1,443,149
At31 March 2022 R0nF3IA3NA

Cost A 1,249,102 2,618,384 482,182 39,929 103,031 150,258 4,642,886
Accumulated depreciation  23HTE (655,783) (2,094,359 (356,858) (34,050) (58,687) = (3,199,737)
Net hook amount KRTE 593,319 524,025 125,324 5,879 44,344 150,258 1,443,149
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)
Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss is

6 M¥ - HMERREE)
REEABRRAERZNER DA

analysed as follows: T

Cost of sales $HE KA 161,783 160,677
General and administrative expenses — M RITHRAX 18,678 14,393
180,461 175,070

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES
(a) Balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet
Right-of-use assets

7 ERAEEEREREAHE
() RGEEERBREAZER
EHEEE

Year ended 31 March 2021

HE202153831BILEE

Opening net book amount FMEEFE 1,129 2,632 107,054 - 110,815
Additions RE 19 - 7,178 83,885 91,082
Disposals HE - (1,473) - - (1,473)
Depreciation (Note 23) & (MaE23) (795) (68) (3,380) (1,113) (5,356)
Exchange differences hEESE 2 1 5,150 @) 5,149
Closing net book amount FREEFE 355 1,092 116,002 82,768 200,217
° At 31 March 2021 72021434318
e Cost B AR 2,038 2,787 150,638 83,885 239,348
[ ] N -
T Accumulated depreciation REHE (1,683) (1,695) (34,636) (1,117) (39,131)
y
Net book amount RHEFE 355 1,092 116,002 82,768 200,217
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont’d) 7 ERAREERHEHEAE (H)
(a) Balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (Cont’d) (a) REEEEEABRERZEH (F)
Right-of-use assets (Contd) EREESE (&)

Year ended 31 March 2022 HE202F3831BILEE

Opening net book amount FMEmFE 355 1,092 116,002 82,768 200,217
Additions NE 2,079 - - = 2,079
Depreciation (Note 23) & (M5E23) (799) (42) (3,583) (1,925) (6,349)
Exchange differences hEESE - - (4,318) 557 (3,761)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 1,635 1,050 108,101 81,400 192,186
At 31 March 2022 202253 A31H

Cost DN 4,117 2,787 150,638 83,885 241,427
Accumulated depreciation 2EE (2,482) (1,737) (42,537) (2,485) (49,241)
Net book amount REFE 1,635 1,050 108,101 81,400 192,186
Lease liabilities HEEE

Current portion TRENE S 27,141 34,036 y
Non-current portion JERBYEB > 7,974 7,181

85,118 41,217
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

7 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont’d)
(b) Amounts recognized in the consolidated income statement

(c)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRAEEENE
Expenses relating to short-term leases RHHERBERAX

fEIMRHERBZHE

Unwinding of interests on lease liabilities

HEMBRENE (B)

7 EAREERMEESE (B
(b) REFEWBRBRAZEH

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T T
6,349 5,356
1,178 121
1,565 1,550

The total cash outflow of leases for the year ended 31 March 2022 was
approximately HK$9,989,000 (2021: The total cash outflow of leases for the
year ended 31 March 2021 was approximately HK$52,566,000, including
partial settlement of lease liabilities in respect of the Group's land use right in
Vietnam amounting to HK$51,344,000 (Note (c))).

Depreciation of HK$5,550,000 (2021: HK$5,288,000) has been charged in
‘cost of sales”and HK$799,000 (2021: HK$68,000) in ‘administrative expenses’
respectively during the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for
The Group leases land under land use right arrangements in the PRC and
Vietnam and owns leasehold land in Hong Kong.

The Group leases various office premises. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 2 to 3 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has successfully obtained the formal legal
title for the land use rights in Vietnam with the carrying amount amounted to
HK$81,400,000. (As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount for land use rights
in Vietnam amounted to HK$82,768,000, which the Group is still in the process
of applying for the formal legal title.)

As at 31 March 2022, the outstanding lease liabilities in respect of such land
use right amounted to HK$26,021,000 (2021: HK$33,515,000).

2021 /2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

Name of subsidiaries

WEARER

Shares held directly by the Company:
RAFERBARS

Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd.

Pacific Textiles Overseas Holdings Ltd.

Pacific HK & China Holdings Ltd.

Pacific SPM Holdings Ltd.

Fast Right Group Limited
LRAKEARAE

Gain Trillion Limited

Product Champion Limited

Shares held indirectly by the Company:
AAEEERERY

Fast Right Group (HK) Limited
FREE(FE)ERAT

Pacific Textiles Limited

ERGBARAE

Place of incorporation and
kind of legal entity

TR LR
EABRER

British Virgin Islands, limited liability
company

ARRARE BRELAF

British Virgin Islands, limited liability
company

ARRARE BRELAF

British Virgin Islands, limited liability
company

ARRARE BRELAF

British Virgin Islands, limited liability
company

ABRARE BREMAF

British Virgin Islands, limited liability
company

REEKES ERALAF

Hong Kong, limited liability company
B BRELLHF

British Virgin Islands, limited liability
company

RERAES EREMLT

Hong Kong, limited liability company
i BEREMART

Hong Kong, limited liability company
B BREMAH

Particulars of
issued share/
paid up capital
BRTRE/
BRERAEFE

HKS1
1B

HKS1
1B

HKS1
1B

HKS1
1B

US$1,000
1000%7T

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

Uss1
E3D

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

HK$103,000,000
103,000,000 7

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

HEMBRENE (B)

8 MEBAF
TRAIRK2022FR2021F3 83182
FEMBAR -

Equity interest attributable

to the Group Principal activities
AEEEERAER TEEE
2022 2021
02% 2001 F
100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100%  Investment holding
REER
100% 100%  Investment holding
RERR
100% 100%  Investment holding y
REER
100% 100%  Investment holding and trading of ‘
textile products in Hong Kong <@

REBETRABRRGBRE

\
7
3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Name of subsidiaries

WEARER

Particulars of

Shares held indirectly by the Company: (Cont'd)

FAREERERS : (H)

Pacific SPM Investment Limited

ERNEHBEABRAT

Trillion Trading Macao Limited

KaE 7R ARAT
Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited (Note (a))
ER(ER) HBAZARAE (K (@)

Pacific GT Limited

PCGT Limited

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited ("PCTL")
(Note (b))

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited ([PCTL])
(Bt )

South Shining Limited
BE2ERAT

Joyful Wonder Limited

Guangzhou Gaozhuan Information
Technology Limited (Note (c))
BENEZEARRARAR (K ©)

Top Textiles Limited (Note (d))
Top Textiles Limited (F £ (d))

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Place of incorporation and issued share/
kind of legal entity paid up capital
ELIARE D BRTRE/
EABRER ARRAFEE
Hong Kong, limited liability company HKS1
FE BERELAT 1T
Macau, limited liability company MOP1,000,000
R BREERR 1,000,000 % P 8
PRC, wholly foreign owned limited 1J5589,700,000

liability company 89,700,000 7T

TENEBEBRELLA

British Virgin Islands, limited liability 1S5$19,025,000

company 19,025,000 T
EBRAES BREAMRA
Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$3,900,000
i BREEAT 3,900,000 T
Vietnam, limited liability company US$48,000,000
BE - BERELEAT 48000,000% T
British Virgin Islands, limited liability US$1
company (I
RBRAHS EREALR
Hong Kong, limited liability company HK$10,000
B EREEAT 10,000 7T

PRC, wholly foreign owned limited RMB10,000,000

liability company AR
ENEBEBRELLA 10,000,000 70
Vietnam, limited liability company 15$29,000,000
B BREEAR 29000000 T

2021 /2022 Annual Report

HEMBRENE (B)

8 MEAXE (&)

Equity interest attributable

to the Group
rEARERAER
2022 2021
20225 20214
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
95% 95%
71.25% 71.25%
71.25% 71.25%
95% 95%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding

RERKR

Trading of textile products in Macau

REFETHERE

Manufacturing and trading of textile
products in PRC

ReEETHEnRERES
Investment holding
RERK

Investment holding and trading of
textile products in Hong Kong

REBETRARRRSBRE

Manufacturing and trading of textile
products in Vietnam

REBETHBRRERES

Investment holding
REAR

Investment holding

RERRK

Provision for information technology
service in PRC

RPEREEAM R

Manufacturing and trading of textile
products in Vietnam

REBETHERRERRS



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(a)

5

—
o
=

Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited is a wholly foreign owned limited liability
company incorporated in the PRC with registered capital of US$89,700,000 to
be operated from July 1997 to July 2047. As at 31 March 2022, the Group has
fully paid up the registered capital to this subsidiary.

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Vietnam with registered capital of US$48,000,000 to be operated from April
2011 to January 2054. As at 31 March 2022, the Group has fully paid up the
registered capital to this subsidiary.

Guangzhou Gaozhuan Information Technology Limited is a wholly foreign
owned limited liability company incorporated in PRC with registered capital
of RMB20,000,000 to be operated from May 2016 to May 2046. As at 31 March
2022, the Group is yet to pay up registered capital of RMB10,000,000 to this
subsidiary.

Top Textiles Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Vietnam
with registered capital of US$29,000,000 to be operated from March 2020
to December 2065. As at 31 March 2022, the Group has fully paid up the
registered capital to this subsidiary.

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt security at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

HEMBRENE (B)

8 MEXE (&)

(a)

g

(d)

BEARGHBERERDA

BER(ER)GBENZEER G A —
RRFEFAMK I INEBEBRE
FRR - EFME R A89,700,0003%
JC  B11997 F 7 BB EE SR 2047 F
7H - R202%F3A8318  ALEE
BRZWBARZAMER -

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited & — &
REEaEfAkZ s BRETAR  E
5 & AN 48,000,000 3 7T © 7 2011
FARFABEBE2054F1H R
20223 A31 8 - AEEEHURZM
BRRAZAFMER -

EBMNEEEMBEERARA RN
FREEMKZZINEEEBREER
A AFMER AR AR 20,000,000
JC 2016 5 AR & & £ 2046 F
5A-R20202%3A318  AEEH
RENZNB AR ZEMERARKE
10,000,000 JT ©

Top Textiles Limited & — 5 A 1 /3 &
ML z2BREMTAR  ETfME
7K 429,000,000 7T+ 20209 3 A
A& B E2065F 12 8 ° 12022 F
3A3H  AEBEDHRELHMEBERR
ZaEMER -

RERSEF AR - B AT
BREITEMNEHRES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
(f) Material non-controlling interests
The total non-controlling interest as at 31 March 2022 is HK$11,399,000 (2021:
HK$15,704,000), mainly comprised the Group'’s investment in Vietnam through
Pacific GT Limited, PCGT Limited and PCTL. The non-controlling interests in
respect of South Shining Limited are not material.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for each subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

HEMBRENE (B)

8 MEBEAAF (&)
(f) EXFEEMEERS
202253 A31 8 7 FE1EH M RERS
4858 511,399,000 7T (2021 £ -
15,704,0007870) * T B RIEAEE S
i® Pacific GT Limited + PCGT Limited &
PCTLA B REITHRE - BMEFARA
AIMIEIESIGERBIEEX -

HBEAZH B 8RR 2B
AT #IN RS AEENSBEAW
RSS2 SMB AR 2 BE

B E -
Pacific GT Limited PCGT Limited PCTL
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 2014 2022 F 20214 20225 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET TR FTAET FTHET FHT
Summarised balance sheet ZEEEERME
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,925 2925 380,754 382,603 283,685 290,374
Current assets MENEE 176,807 141,953 276,413 211,076 172,064 183,118
Non-current liabilities EEB= - - 126,218 125375 37,957 44,491
Current liabilities mEEE 2,121 3,956 518,924 445438 50,061 51377
Net assets BEFE 177,611 140,922 12,025 22,866 367,731 377,624
Summarised statement of EHEEME
profit or loss
Revenue WA = - 1,182,031 989,736 663,655 559,634
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR)/HH (810) (2,718) 8,096 17,626 15,422 31,017
Other comprehensive (loss)/  FEEM2ME (EE),/
income for the year WA - - - - (3,359) 11214
Total comprehensive (loss)/ ~ FE2E (B18),/ WA
income for the year B - (2,718) 8,906 17,626 12,063 42,231
(Loss)/profit attributable to D EZEIFEHIEEZEZ
non-controlling interests (&), & Fl (41) (136) 2,328 5,067 4,271 8917
Dividends paid to non- [R) FE 428 ) M A 2 IR 1+ B
controlling interests g - - (12,500) (12,500) - -
Summarised cash flows REREHE
Net cash generated from/ HEEHME/(FTH)
(used in) operating activities 2B & FE - - (48,517) 19,233 39,547 18,002
Net cash generated from/ BREEBHRE/(FA)
(used in) investing activities B & F 5 - - - 35 (38,757) (13,094)
Net cash generated from/ BEEBHHIE/(FA)
(used in) financing activities R & ¥ % - - 78,020 - (450) -
Net increase/(decrease) in RBehReSMEERE
cash and cash equivalents m/CRd) 38 - - 29,503 19,268 340 4,908

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 12021 /2022 Annual Report



)~
FINANCIAL INFORMATION %
pigEn

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

8 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 8 MELQA (&)
(f) Material non-controlling interests (Cont'd) () ERFEHMER (F)
The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations. L ER AARIMEEKEAT 5 -
As at 31 March 2022, cash and bank deposits of HK$10,171,000 (2021: $2022F3A31 8 PCTLR B+
HK$7,865,000) of PCTL are held in Vietnam and are subject to local exchange BB RIEBITF 10,171,000 7T
control regulations. These local exchange control regulations provide for (2021 4F : 7,865,000/87T) + BAXH
restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal T3 ONEE B I 3R TE B AR PR o 525 M 77 S
dividends. T 5 11l 453 7 9 44 B PO B B R AE PR

b A B E B AR E BRI o

9 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE 9 REEQNTAZEZREN—BEEQT
RIE

SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd. FIER(EM) ABEGHEER
(“SPM Automotive”) BRAR(TEIEKR]) 48,017 45835
Teejay Lanka PLC ("PT Sri Lanka”) Teejay Lanka PLC ([PTHT 2 1) 311,351 301,242
359,368 347,077
Movements in share of net assets of associates are as follows: DIEHE R BEEFEIEESHNT ¢

At 1 April ®4A1H 347,077 323,487
Dividends % 2 (22,707) (20,646)
Share of profits paKfapi-wil 34,890 40,647
Currency translation differences INEE A R 108 3,589
At 31 March #3A318 359,368 347,077

EXRGBERBRALT | 2021 12022 FHW
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9

HEMBRENE (B)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd) 9 REEARAZEZREMN—EHEARF
A (%)
The particulars of the associates at 31 March 2022 and 2021, which were held R2022F K 2021 F3 A3 H 2B E QT
indirectly by the Company, are as follows: (BAARIBERE) ZFBOT
Particulars of
Place of incorporation and issued share  Equity interest attributable  Principal activities and
Name of associates kind of legal entity capital to the Group place of operation
A B 3L B
BEARER REAERER BRTRAFEE AEEEERAER TEXH
2022 2021
2022 % 20214
SPM Automotive PRC, limited liability company US$7,500,000 33% 33%  Manufacturing and trading of
vehicles related textile products in
the PRC
IR hE EREARA 7,500,000 % 7T R BT AERABS SmBEER
25
Teejay Lanka PLC Sri Lanka, limited liability RS2,749,266,000 28% 28%  Manufacturing and trading of textile
company products in Sri Lanka
PTHEB R WMEBER AREELA 2,749,266,000 KRR RETHRRHERE S

HEFRER

SPM Automotive is an unlisted company in the PRC and there is no quoted market
price available for its shares.

At 31 March 2022, the quoted market value of the Group's interest in PT Sri Lanka,

which is listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka, was approximately
HK$311,986,000 (2021: HK$305,849,000).

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 12021 /2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

Summarised financial information for associates

Set out below are the summarised financial information for SPM Automotive and

PT Sri Lanka, which are accounted for using the equity method.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

HEMBRENE (B)

9 RBERAZEZREN-—BBEQT
R (#)
BENTNMBENRE
AT #FETE R R PTH B RIAME R
EANERNMBEEREE -

SPM Automotive PT Sri Lanka
FIEK PTHTEHE
2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 5 20214 2022 F 20215
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHET TER THET
Summarised balance sheet EEEBBERHUE
Non-current assets EREBEE 5,745 6,212 578,111 415,110
Current assets BN EE 228,347 234,107 1,015,495 810,487
Non-current liabilities ERBBEE - - 212,493 78,662
Current liabilities BB E 88,587 101,426 644,884 452,550
Net assets BEESFE 145,505 138,893 736,229 694,385
Summarised statement of BERUE
profit or loss
Revenue WA 417,717 425438 1,950,902 1,429,676
Profit for the year FEBM 25,538 38,232 98,923 93,241
Other comprehensive income FEEMEERA
for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income FEIHEWALE
for the year 25,538 38,232 98,923 93,241

ERFHERERAT | 2021/2022 F5;
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9

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

Summarised financial information for associates (Cont'd)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information of the associates to

the carrying value of the Group's interest in associates is as follows:

HEMBRENE (B)

9 RBERAZEZREN-—BBEQT
R (#)
BEATNMBENRE (H)

Pl ERNRMBERNRERARNERR
e NBRERAENEKRNT

SPM Automotive PT Sri Lanka Total
FIIEK PTHIEE+ #gt
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
2022 F 2014 2022 F 20214 2022 201
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THET THAL THER FTHET THERx THAT
Opening net assets at 1 April R4 A1 BENZEEFE 138,893 114,088 694,385 647,426 833,278 761,514
Currency translation INEMEZET
differences 3,932 8478 (2,744) 1,790 1,188 10,268
Profit for the year FERF 25,538 38,232 98,923 93,241 124,461 131473
Dividends i E) (22,858) (21,905) (54,335) (48,072) (77,193) (69,.977)
Closing netassets at 31 March M3 A3 BERZEEFE 145,505 138,893 736,229 694,385 881,734 833,278
Net assets attributable to rEEEGEEFE
the Group 48,017 45,835 205,482 193,804 253,499 239,639
Goodwill S - - 108,747 108,302 108,747 108,302
Less: Unrealised gainonsale i, - HEHET—HEE A
of machinery to an EF&S e
associate - - (2,878) (864) (2,878) (864)
Interests in associates NN 48,017 45835 311,351 301,242 359,368 347,077
Dividends received from BB ENRIRE
associates 7,543 7,229 15,164 13,417 22,707 20,646

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements
of the associates adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the

Group and the associates.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

Summarised financial information for associates (Cont’d)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s share of contingent liability in respect of a
pending tax claim against PT Sri Lanka amounted to approximately HK$15,153,000
(2021: HK$8,389,000). The Group has no contingent liabilities relating to its
interests in associates.

Cash and bank deposits of HK$83,620,000 (2021: HK$89,894,000) which belongs
to the Group's associate in the PRC are held in the PRC and are subject to local
exchange control regulations. These local exchange control regulations provide
for restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.

Amounts due from associates
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing, repayable
on demand and current in nature. The amounts are denominated in USS.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

HEMBRENE (B)

9 RBERAZEZENEN—BHEQT

FIE (18)
HEATNMBEENSE (F)
R2022F3A31H - AEBE L —IBEPT
HEMFRECFABRBRREMLD

B BEAA15153,0008 70 (2021 F -
8,389,000/ 7T) ° $‘¥I$E%/xﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁt i
ERRERZNBAE

EPIHEEEEEAKEI A 2 B

Al HY IR & KR 1T 17 5£83,620,000 % 7T
(2021 4F : 89,894,000/ 7T) * H/BSH
SNE B B IR T MR o Z S INEE
B4R B A IE LA AREL R - M
7B L R AR S 0E W RIBR AN -

PE Uk Bt 2 N ) FRIB

FEWEE AR RBRAEER 28 R©
SHRHEELBRINEMNE - ¢ BMUE
TLYIME °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

10 BRAREFARMBEZERANEREE

10 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME

Club debentures TEESF 427 853
At 1 April w4A1H 853 853
Disposal & (426) -
At 31 March M3A31H 427 853

The fair values of club debentures are based on second hand market prices.

See Note 3.3 for further information on fair value. The club debentures are

denominated in HKS.

11 INVENTORIES

EREFZANEDNRE-_FMIHEE
EeRWEABARBZE-—FE
o gRERNETIIE-

11 FE&

Raw materials =R 619,896 843,976
Work-in-progress E& 346,140 111,390
Finished goods SRR mm 270,748 268,059

1,236,784 1,223,425

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year amounted
to approximately HKS$4,561,256,000 (2021: HK$3,889,422,000) which included
reversal of provision for inventories amounted to approximately HK$34,905,000
(2021: HK$17,607,000) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Pacific Textiles Holdlngs Limited

nnual Report

FRAFABERARAZFER ALY
A 4,561,256,0008 7 (2021 F -
3,889,422,000% 7T) + BLIEEL £ 202243
A 31 BIEFEREFE B E 34,905,000
7T (2021 4F 17,607,000 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION %
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RENHRRME (R)

12 ERERF R EE

Trade receivables JE W BR 3N 908,056 816,207
Bills receivables T 39,140 49,368
947,196 865,575

Less: Provision for impairment of T FE AR FOR B R B
trade receivables (1,605) (2,023)
945,591 863,552

Majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 120 days. The aging
analysis of trade and bills receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

AEBRIEDHEEZEFEEHRNT0E
120K - MBIBEHZAH  BREEANLERE
ZERE DWW

0 - 60 days 0-60K 700,960 653,969
61— 120 days 61-120K 242,233 208,405
121 days — 1 year 121R-14F 4,003 3,201

947,196 865,575

Trade and bills receivables were denominated in the following currencies:

ERMRAR R RRIZAT ERFIE :

uss EV 793,250 667,531 q
RMB AR 113,978 79072 @
HKS BT 39,968 118,972

947,196 865,575




FINANCIAL INFORMATION V-
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

12 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 12 ERERARREE (&)
The top two customers accounted for approximately 25% (2021: 32%) and 36% BMAE P D R4 (h 2 & F &R R
(2021: 28%), respectively, of the Group’s trade and bills receivables; all other % 25% (2021 4F : 32%) K 36% (2021
customers individually accounted for less than 6% of the Group's trade and bills F:28%) R20202F3A31H FiBEH
receivables as at 31 March 2022. fth 2= = E BIAE AN & B R W AR R R B4
R 6% °

The fair value of trade and bills receivables approximate the net book carrying FEUREREER A A EERDFEME
amounts. H o

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected AEBRABBVBREEAFEORE
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and bills (LR A= EERE  UHAMERE
receivables. Note 3.1 provides for details about the calculation of the allowance WERRZREAREEGANTERES
and the Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. BEE W HEFERBURRE

B HME [ B Ko M K [ B 2 FE B o

Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment of trade and bill receivables AN E B EBR R R E R AE LR E RS
are as follows: ZEEBMT
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHEIT
At 1 April m4A1H 2,023 1,562
Currency translation differences INEME EE (52) 172
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment loss of JEUBR 3k (B BURE), BB E B
trade receivables (366) 5,396
Written off 88 - (5,107)
At 31 March M3HA31H 1,605 2,023
The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the net book REER & XNEERE A Lt gk
carrying amounts of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold B BREFE ANEBTEFE MK
any collateral as security. o ER-R -
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13 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 13 Be  BENREREMEKRKE

Rental, utility and other deposits e 2ARBREMZS 423 487
Prepayments for purchase of inventories and BEFHEEBEEMBNNIE

consumables 10,872 24,271
Prepayments for purchase of property, plantand & E ¥ - Wi&E k& EH B RE

equipment 110,020 71,744
Other prepayments H T8 B 9,386 5,208
Value-added tax recoverable AU E SR E R 21,694 24,310
Others H Al 4,520 9,892

156,915 135,912

Less non-current portion: WIEMENIE S -
Prepayments for purchase of property, plantand & B2 « fi&E & E B R0E

equipment (110,020) (71,744)
Current portion mENE S 46,895 64,168
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables are denominated in the following e - TER A R H A E YR IB IR AT
currencies: EH5IME :

VND WA 97,265 59,953

RMB AR 31,505 55,033

uss EVi 20,656 17,549

MOP SR P 6,585 2,375

HKS BT 904 1,002 y
156,915 135,912

BEAHGMERERAR | 202172022 F3§
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13

14

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, due to the short-term nature of deposits and other
receivables, except for the prepayments and value-added tax recoverable which
are not financial assets, the carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables
approximate their fair values.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the carrying amount
of deposits and other receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral as
security.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all deposits and other
receivables. Information about the impairment of deposits and other receivables
and the Group's exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
can be found in Note 3.1.

FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

13 & - BMAE

HEMBRENE (B)

X IE & H fth FE W Rk E (4])
R2022F R2021F3A31H ARES
FEMEBWFIENEBAEE BB
BRAWEISER T IFEMEEIN &
e REMEBWFENROEREAAE
iEE=S

REER BERXEERBRRAERES MEM
EWHIEZ REE - AEBEXEFEE
] 4R G EFEAR o

REBRBE LY B RE LD E IR
ezt BEMEEER  UYmER

& N H A U Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂi Hm
HIBREE - ARRE REMERFOR
BMERARAEEEERR  SNERRE R
FERER BB BN -

14 RARBEFABBENERNEE A6

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTET T T
Assets: EBE:
Unlisted financial product (Note a) ELmerER(Mita) 44,018 -
Derivatives financial instruments TEEMIA
— Forward foreign currency contracts (Note b) —RHINEE X (M 3ED) - 15,437
44,018 15,437
Liabilities: afE:
Derivatives financial instruments PTEEmMIA
— Forward foreign currency contracts (Note b) —EHINEE L) (B FED) - (3,282)

Notes:

(@) On 31 March 2022, the Group has invested RMB35,700,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$44,018,000) into the interest-bearing unlisted financial product
with the bank.

(b) As at 31 March 2022, the Group has settled all forward foreign currency contracts.
(2021: The notional principal amounts of the Group’s outstanding forward foreign
currency contracts were HK$254,602,000).

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss at the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Please refer to Note 3.1 for further
information.
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(@) M2022F3 A3 H AREBEYHEIRTE
VHEFELEMEMERKRET AR
#% 35,700,000 7T (#8 & 1A £ 44,018,000 7
JT) °©

(b) M2022F3A31B AEBELKBA
ERBINEEH 01 F . AEEZ
REBRBNNEEN B ERSRER
254,602,000 7T ) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 15 ReRESEEEEUREHETER

Cash and cash equivalents RehESEEEER 1,545,128 946,152

Short-term bank deposits HERITER - 11,323
1,545,128 957,475

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the book REHB  EREERBARITEESZ

carrying value of the cash at banks. BREE -

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are denominated in the RekBReFEEEUREHARITER

following currencies: RATERIE -

uss EN 1,093,266 700,225
RMB AR 309,630 108,300
HKS T 132,164 144,720
LKR HEWREL 5,234 27
VND WA 4,636 3,502
Others H 198 701

1,545,128 957,475
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS
(Cont'd)
The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in RMB amounted
HK$207,880,000 (2021: HK$91,160,000) and VND amounted HK$4,636,000 (2021:
HK$3,502,000) are primarily deposited with banks in the PRC and Vietnam. The
conversion of RMB and VND denominated balances into foreign currencies and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC and Vietnam are subject to rules and
regulations on foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC Government
and the Vietnam Government, respectively.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates
ranging from 0.04% to 2.85% per annum at 31 March 2022 (2021: 0.05% to 2.10%
per annum).

The effective annual interest rate and maturities of short-term bank deposits at 31
March 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

BEFRF R X
2 HA

Effective annual interest rate
Maturities

HEMBRENE (B)

15 RERREEEHERBURERRITER

(#8)
AEBEBNUAREEBEEIE RS R
IR 1T 45 82 9 Bl A 207,880,000 7 JT (2021
£ 191,160,000 % 7T) K 4,636,000 T
(2021 : 3,502,000 7T) * HEBEHFHR
FREERMEZRIT - SARBRBEE
FIMBZ EHERABIINE L REREFRE
Ko R S 51N /B 38 7 R B AT K R AT
53 B 98 0 2 SN B 3R A R AR TE o

IBITIH SR IBITE BIFE R R A F BB
BFE - R202F3A31BEEN T &
£.0.04% %= 2.85% (2021 4F : FE0.05% %
2.10%) e

R2022F K& 2021F3 8318 MEIRTT
GRZ2ERFMNERIBAMT

2022 2021
2022 & 2021 4F
2.20% 2.03%

29-365days H  184-365 days H

Information about the impairment of cash and cash equivalent and short-term
bank deposits and the Group's exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 12021 /2022 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

16 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND TREASURY SHARES

(a) Share capital

Authorised
(Ordinary shares of
HK$0.001 each)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

HEMBRENE (B)

16 BAE RO EERERERSG
(a) A&

Issued and fully paid
(Ordinary shares of
HK$0.001 each)

ZE(BEREMENEBT ERTEHZ(EREE
LZER) 0.001 B T2 EER)
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
& 17 1 B HIE B&1n &8 [CIEED
(thousands) HKS'000  (thousands) HK$'000
(FR%) FHT (Fr%) FHET
At 1 April 2020 7202054 A1 H 5,000,000 5,000 1,435,423 1,435
Repurchase and cancellation of BERAETBER
ordinary shares (Note i) (P =% - - (24,215) (24)
At 31 March 2021, 1 April 2021 and 72021563 H31 8 -
31 March 2022 2021 4 A1 H K& 2022
F3H31H 5,000,000 5,000 1,411,208 1,411
Note: B 5

(i) During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company cancelled 24,215,000
shares, which included (i) 22,091,000 shares repurchased in prior period but
not yet cancelled as at 1 April 2020, and (ii) 2,124,000 shares repurchased in
April 2020 at an aggregate consideration of HK$7,739,000. As at 31 March 2021,
all shares repurchased by the Company have been cancelled.

(i) The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of these shares and the premiums paid on these shares upon the repurchase
were charged against the share premium account. An amount equivalent
to the par value of the shares cancelled was transferred from the Company'’s
retained earnings to the capital redemption reserve.

(b) Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.22 of the Cayman Islands, share
premium is distributable to the shareholders of the Company, provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company is in a position to pay off its debts as and when they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.

ERGHBERBRAT |

() BE2021F3A3NHIEFE AR
AIEEEH 24,215,000 i8I 9 - BIE () A
BAEEMBREER20205F4 A1 8
58 3£ $5 89 22,091,000 B A% 19+ K
(i) P 2020 F 4 A LA 2 X {& 7,739,000
7 7T B8 B 89 2,124,000 A% BE 1 - R
20213 A318  AARELBA AT
ERHEEH -

(i) ARAZEBTRADRZFHRD
ZHEERD - st EZERND X
2 EE R & ERRER - 18
ERCEEBOIEECSEEHAE
REZREBE N BB EE ARG
1

(b) BR 17 & E

REFAEFEARZEE2NE R
EBRAHD K TARRBER - HEART]
REEZZREREEAR BBk
NEEREXBBIET I MOERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

16 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND TREASURY SHARES (Cont’d)
(c) Share option scheme
The Group’s share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
Company by means of a shareholders’ written resolution on 27 April 2007.

On 11 October 2013, the Board of Directors approved the granting of options
to eligible employees to subscribe for a total of 10,000,000 shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$9.98 per share with vesting period of 3-9
years. These share options are exercisable at any time during the period from
11 October 2016 to 10 October 2023.

The fair value of the options granted on 11 October 2013, determined using
the binomial model, was HK$18,529,000 at the grant date. The significant
inputs to the model were share price of HK$9.98 at the grant date, exercise
price of HK$9.98, volatility of 45%, expected annual dividend yield of 9%, an
expected option life of 10 years, and an annual risk free interest rate of 2.09%.
The volatility measured at the grant date was referenced to the historical
volatility of the Company.

Movements in share options are as follows:

HEMBRENE (B)

16 BA - RIDBEEREERHG (H)
(c) BRHESE
AEB BT EE R 2007 F 4 A 27
HBEBARREEMrERZANELRR
AL R R AR o

R2013F 10811 H EFERIE
mMAEEKRESR T EARE  LIHEE
ERTEETRISETLRES R
10,000,000 RN A G R 15 - BRIBE A
ZENF - ZEFERETR2016F 10
A11BZE2023%F 10810 BB AT
AR ITfE o

BR2013F10 A 11 AR EREKRE
ML B E& R R E A 18,529,000 7
T A B EEENERE -
ZEBEATEERER LA ZK
BR9.988 7T » 1THEE R8T -
NG A 45% ~ TBAIF ERE B HRE A
9% - TEBHIEREHR A 10FRFE
R R R 5209%EE o RIFE A
HZ BB T2EARRNRZBERS
MMmErE ©

BhREZ2EZHWT

Number of share options

BREHE
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
At beginning of year REA] 8,050,000 8,050,000
Lapsed during the year FAKRK (150,000) -
At end of year RER 7,900,000 8,050,000

The above outstanding share options have the following expiry date and
exercise price:

Lt RAT AR 2 BB A RIT(E
BaF :

Exercise price

per share Number of share options
HK$ BREZE
BRITEE 2022 2021
BT 2022 F 2021 4F
Expiry date YS!
10 October 2023 2023F 10 A 10H 9.98 7,900,000 8,050,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

17 RESERVES 17 %

At 1 April 2020 R2020E4818 1,000 421,245 85,882 13555 1 1,151,835 1673528
Profit attributable to equity holders of RRRRHEEARERT
the Company - - - - - 721491 721491

Currency translation differences SNEREEE - - 200,144 - - - 202,144
Total comprehensive income FERNEE - - 202,144 - - 721491 923635
Transaction with owners: HEEARS:

Share-based compensation expense (Note 24)  AR{D BER 2B X 1 (3 14) - - - 584 - - 584

Repurchase and cancelation of shares BERERY - - - - U (24 -

Transfer to statutory reserve BRTATHE - 14,060 - - - (14,060) -

2019/2020 final dividends W90 EFRERS - - - - - (254017) (254017)

2020/2021 interim dividends 20002001 ERFRE - - - - - (310466) (310466)
Total transaction with owners HEEARPEE - 14060 - 584 A4 (578567) (563,899)
At 31 March 2021 R2021%E3531R 1,000 435,305 288,026 14139 35 1294759 2033264
Representing: R

Proposed final dividend (Note 26) BERDBRE (M) 310466

Others i 98493

1294759
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

17 RESERVES (Cont'd) 17 %% (#)

At 1 April 2021 R2021%E4818 1,000 435,305 288,026 14,139 35 1,294,759 2,033,264
Profit attributable to equity holders of TRAER B ARG ST
the Company - - - - - 572,677 572,677
Curtency translation differences IBREEE - - 114,761 - - - 114,761
Total comprehensive income FERNEE - - 114,761 - - 572,677 687,438
Transaction with owners: HEEARS:
Share-based compensation expense (Note 24)  AR{D BER Z B2 X 1 (i3 14) - - - 585 - - 585
Lapse of share options BRELK - - - (32) = 3 5
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTATHE s 20,759 = - - (20,759) =
20202021 final dividends 202012021 KB & - - - - - (310,466)  (310466)
2021/2022 interim dividends 2001/200 %5 Eik & = = = = = (296,353) (296,353)
Total transaction with owners HEEARPEE - 20,759 - 553 - (627,546)  (606,234)
At31 March 2022 R202%38318 1,000 456,064 402,787 14,692 35 1239890 2,114,468
Representing: R
Proposed final dividend (Note 28) BERDBRE (M) 197,569
Others Efh 1,042,321
1,239,890
°
5
°
%

Pacific Textiles"HoIdings Limited nnual Report

132



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

17 RESERVES (Cont’d)
Notes:

0

Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares
of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a reorganisation in November 2004 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

Statutory reserves represent legal reserve of a subsidiary incorporated in Macau
and statutory reserves of a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC.

In accordance with the Macao Commercial Code, the Group's subsidiary
incorporated in Macau is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of its after-tax
profit to legal reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches a level equivalent to
50% of its capital.

The subsidiary established in the PRC is required to make appropriations to certain
statutory reserves from profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years before any profit distribution to equity holders. The percentages to
be appropriated to different statutory reserves are determined according to the
relevant regulations in the PRC or at the discretion of the board of the subsidiary.
Such statutory reserves can only be used to offset accumulated losses, to increase
capital, or for special bonus or collective welfare of employees.

These statutory reserves cannot be distributed to equity holders of the subsidiary.

No other statutory reserves are required to be made by the Group in other
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

HEMBRENE (B)

17 &% (&)
B 5E -

()

(i)

BEARGHBERERDA

BARREBIERIE2004F 11 A2 EHEMT
U BT B A AR (0 2 EE R AR &) h
BT RATEBE %25 -

ETE R IEORPIRE MBS 2 — R 8
RAZAERFERARDBEEMATL 2 —
RPN E A R R ERME -

RIERPI R A - ORI S 2 A
EEMNBARBBERBRE R R
N MABEEE  EEZHEERE
EHEEREBRAS0% A LE °

WA BIRSZ B AR EEEATEFE
RABERRCFERNERNBRIFA
AR AR ) 93 0k 2 BT A SR S TOR
ERE -RBEEERAES L RRIAH
PEDER A BZMBAREZRATR
E o BBEEREBRATBERHERE
1B EMEARSIRBERIEARE T &

B

ZEERERBETEDIRTZMBARZ
BERAA -

REBEANNEBE L ERENEM A
AR AE R E AR TE R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

18 BORROWINGS 18 B &

Non-current: ¥R :
Loan from a non-controlling interest of a — BB A R IEE B =
subsidiary (Note (i)) U E (PN 126,218 125,375
Current: wE
Short-term bank loans (Note (i) 2 HRER 1T B AR (M RE (i) 1,453,683 645,443
Notes: M5
(i) The loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary is denominated in US$, () —TFEMIE A R FEFE bl M A A R B A
unsecured, non-interest bearing, and not expected to be repayable within the next ELHE - RERR - RS RFEHE
12 months. The fair value of this balance approximates its carrying amount. ARRRINEARNEER - ZHEBR 2D
AREHZFRERMEE -
(i) The bank loans bear interest at floating rates. The fair values of the bank loans (i) SBITERIREHFERTE - RITERZ
approximates their carrying amounts. AAEHNEREEEE -
The Group’s bank borrowings, after taking into account of repayable on demand BEr RIZERKERGER  NEBZRT
clause, are repayable as follows: BEEEEHRNOT

Within 1 year or on demand AR FERNIIREKRKER 1,453,683 645,443

nnual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

18 BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 18 & (§)
The Group's bank borrowings repayable based on the scheduled repayment dates REtEBERARASEEEEENRITE
are as follows: BT

Within 1 year 1R 511,993 645,443
Between 1 and 2 years 1E2F 210,793 -
Between 2 and 5 years 2E54F 730,897 -

1,453,683 645,443
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in the REBEBITEBEZEEHEENTERS
following currencies: 8 :

uss EN 1,376,683 575,443
HK$ BT 77,000 70,000
1,453,683 645,443
As at 31 March 2022, the weighted average interest rates at each of the MR2022F3A8318 REGKEEEAR
consolidated balance sheet date were 1.09% (2021: 1.55%). =B E®INETEFEEF1.09% (2021
F 1 155%) °
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had aggregate banking facilities of approximately M2022F3R831H AKEMRITHE
HK$3,409,674,000 (2021: HK$2,613,726,000). Unused facilities as at the same date 48 #) 55 3,409,674,000 7% JT (2021 4F -
amounted to approximately HK$1,955,991,000 (2021: HK$1,968,283,000). 2,613,726,0007% 70) » IR E H A K8 H

B & #97%1,955,991,000 3 7T (2021 4F :

1,968,283,000 % 7T) © ’

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has complied with the financial covenants of its R2022%F3A31H AEBEBETHER
bank facilities. TRLE BB TS 224 - (
@
As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s borrowings amounting to HK$1,157,821,000 MR2022F3A31H AEEABH
(2021: HK$348,741,000) were secured by corporate guarantees provided by the 1,157,821,000 7% 7T (20214 : 348,741,000
Company. BT ZEEBRARA TR B EERA
A o

EAHBERERAT | 2021/2022 FH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

18 BORROWINGS (Cont'd) 18 fH & (&)
Information about the Group's exposure to liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and BRASERDESRR - INERB K
interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1. The exposure of the Group’s borrowings FERBAERERI - AEBEEERN
to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates were as follows: MEE R RAELENEER T
LU

6 months or less 7~ME A AR 1,453,683 645,443
19 DEFERRED TAXATION 19 EAEHE

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally EHEEEANITENGEEBAEHREE

enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax LENHAFRGH B EEN  BREMGH

liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income BERBEYRBE—WHBEHKELER

taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different MERBITRERBRERESERLF

taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. BEELEHEESRE AU GREEMSH

BENABEREKH-

The net movement in the deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) is as follows: EIEATEHEE,/(BRE)WFEBHNT

At 1 April ®4A1H (47,694) (31,410)
Charged to the consolidated statement of RERE B RN (M sk 26)

profit or loss (Note 26) (11,858) (13,001)
Currency translation differences INEE M E xR (1,053) (3,283)
At 31 March MW3A31H (60,605) (47,694)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

19 DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd) 19 ELEH A (F)
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into BEFSREERAEEE (R RE—
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as MiEa AERIEE &SR DT
follows:
Deferred income tax assets: BIEFTISTHARE -

At 31 March 2020 7 2020F3 A31H 27,777 27,777
Charged to the consolidated statement of RirEBRRAOR

profit or loss (7,745) (7,745)
Currency translation differences SN E R 1,516 1,516
At 31 March 2021 20213 A31H 21,548 21,548
Credited to the consolidated statement of RIEEEERA

profit or loss 1,030 1,030
Currency translation differences INEE L = R 1,797 1,797
At 31 March 2022 7202263 A31H 24,375 24,375
Deferred income tax liabilities: BEEFEHAE -

At 31 March 2020 7A2020F3 A31H 9,052 50,135 59,187
Currency translation differences GNEE 3 = 2 10 4,789 4,799
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated ~ R4R& B 1k y
statement of profit or loss (5FA)//#Bk (1,620) 6,876 5,256
At 31 March 2021 $2021%3 8318 7,442 61,800 69,242
Currency translation differences INEEME @) 2,857 2,850
Charged to the consolidated statement ~ R4R& B KX MK
of profit or loss 350 12,538 12,888
At 31 March 2022 R2022%3H318 7,785 77,195 84,980

EXRGBERBRALT | 2021 12022 FH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

20 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

-/

-
4

RENHRRME (R)

20 ENERERERE

Trade payables JE A BR 3R 575,028 697,182
Bills payables ERT & 17,663 21,435
592,691 718,617

The book carrying amounts of trade and bills payables approximate their fair
values.

Credit period granted by creditors generally ranges from 30 to 90 days. The aging
analysis based on invoice date on trade and bills payables were aged as follows:

ENERRREZREEREQEN

Eo

juii]

ERNETZEEH BN T0ENK -
ERBZAMIENERRZEZER
ST

0 - 60 days 0-60 K 591,782 671,205
61 - 120 days 61-120 K = 40,135
121 days - 1 year 121 K-14 909 7,277

592,691 718,617

Trade and bills payables were denominated in the following currencies:

ENERERRZATERFINE :

EVi 506,412 571,910
AR 64,123 127,437
WA 12,093 4333
BT 10,063 14,937

592,691 718,617

nnual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

21 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 BT EEREMENSRIE

Accrual for operating expenses EERY ZEFIEE 25,229 33,112
Payables for purchase of property, BEME BEREEZ

plant and equipment FERT IR - 3,229
Provision for employee benefits expense EEBMZ HEE (BELAL)

(including bonus) 76,533 81,099
Estimated customer claims HEBEFPRE 18,412 24,270
Provision for reinstatement costs EEK AR 37,957 37,310
Value-added tax (“VAT") payable FERT I ER ([HEER]) - 3,118
Contract liabilities EHEE 5,503 10,380
Others H A 12,101 10,319

175,735 202,837
Less: non-current portion W ERBE S
Provision for reinstatement costs (X IR (37,957) (37,310)
Current portion BN E 137,778 165,527
Movement of provision for reinstatement costs is as follows: BERABBEESHWNT -

As at 1 April ®4B18 37,310 26,305
(Reversal)/Addition (@), /15 hn (1,049) 9,096
Imputed interest of provision for 1E1E PX 7R B 4 HE 7 FILE

reinstatement costs (Note 25) (BF3E25) 1,100 1,184
Currency translation differences SN E R 596 725 y
As at 31 March M3 A31H 37,957 37,310

BEAHGMERBRAT | 2021/2022 F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

21 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont’d)

-/

-
4

RENHRRME (R)

21 FEGHIE B R H A e RKE ()
FEH IR B REAMM RN FIRR A T B’

Accruals and other payables were denominated in the following currencies:

B :

HKS BT 50,885 72,556
RMB AR 67,541 81,492
uss$ = 14,193 8,136
Others Hi 43,116 40,653

175,735 202,837

Information about the Group's exposure to liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and

interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1.

22 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS - NET

FHAKERHESRAR SRR R
MERERZ RSN -

22 HtW AR Et iz — F 5

Other income: HuA -
Sale of scrap materials o EE R 40,463 34,706
Utilities income NHBZ A 35,964 27,495
Rental income HE WA 3,196 3,216
Government grants I8 468 B 2,754 20,884
Handling income BB A 1,158 991
Sub-contracting income D EIA 948 3,208
Sundry income (Note (i) BN (EE®0) 18,946 35,493
103,429 125,993
Other (losses)/gains - net: Hih (E18) e — 58 -
Derivative financial instruments — PMTESRMIAE—EBINEEH
forward foreign currency contracts 19,811 14,921
(Loss)/gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HECAEEERYME  BER
and property, plant and equipment w2z (Bi8) W (565) 97,654
Net foreign exchange losses HMNEE B 18 B (30,262) (45,322)
(11,016) 67,253
92,413 193,246

i

U}

ﬁ!t:

MIBWAEBYBKE R REYER
MREEES



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

23

24

EXPENSES BY NATURE

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEN

RENHRRME (R)

23 BEMEATNRX

Cost of inventories TFERKA 4,561,256 3,889,422
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% ~ BE MR EITE 180,461 175,070
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 6,349 5,356
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ EERAMEZ (BEESMHE)

emoluments) (Note 24) (M 5E24) 713,658 644,713
Freight charges HiBER 53,955 48,667
Operating lease payments in respect of land and 1 B2 48 45 & T 49 7K 78

buildings 1,178 121
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI 7 BN

— Audit services —EBZ R 2,937 2,906

— Non-audit services —EEZRB 303 248
Others Hh 21,965 17,301
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling HERMA - D RIEERT B

expenses and general and administrative R RITEAXZ

expenses 5,542,062 4,783,804

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

24 BERAMX (BREEHS)

Wages, salaries, and allowances TE - HakEM 618,598 565,646

Retirement benefit — defined contribution RIKE R — E R ARG 8 (MY 3T a)
schemes (Note (a)) 44,072 41,136
Welfare and benefits & H &A= 50,403 37,347
Share-based compensation expense LARR D A ER 2 M€ i 585 584
713,658 644,713

EAMBEZERERAT | 2021/2022 F8
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBEN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

(Cont’d)

(a) Retirement benefit - defined contribution schemes

The Company’s subsidiary in the PRC is a member of the state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the Government of the PRC. The
Group contributes to the scheme at a fixed percentage of the basic salaries
of the subsidiary’s employees, subject to a cap, and has no further obligations
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond its
contributions. The state-managed retirement plans are responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% (2021: 5%)
of the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a
cap of HK$1,500 (2021: HK$1,500) per month and thereafter contributions are

voluntary.

The Company’s subsidiary in Vietnam contributes to state-sponsored
employees’ social insurance scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The
Group contributes to the scheme at 18% (2021:18%) of the basic salaries
of the subsidiary’s employees, subject to a cap. The state-sponsored social
insurance scheme is responsible for the pension obligations payable to retired

employees.

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2022 include 3 directors (2021: 3 directors), whose
emoluments are disclosed in Note 34. The aggregate emolument payable to
the remaining two individuals (2021: two individuals) is as follow:

HEMBRENE (B)

24 EERFMX (BRESEHE) ()

(a) BUKER - EHEMLKEE

(b

-

AR A B 2 M8 A B AT BB
P HE T B3R B IR AR IR AR R R 8 2 B
B -AEERMBRARMEEELFH
Z BB DA S R (T
BRE—LER) - MR - WK
ERTRASBEBEN & —%
BE -BEREEZEARFEEERR
KEEXNABERAKSE -

REEDLZEHHBEEE S a6t
NESHE ([RESFTE]) - &t
EAMRBY AT E Z TEMRG
gl - iRFEmEeE  AEERAE
BRRAHEAESKRITEERE 2EE Y
A2 5% (20214 : 5%) & A W&
BT - AEBEREEHKHAUE A
1,500 70 (2021 FF = 1,500 70) A
R EEFEEHoHRBERMTEY -

ARABREEZHBAR AR BERE
BMERETZEEMLSRETEIE
PR - AEEIRWEQAREBEAR
H& 2 18% (20214 : 18%) (BB E
— EBR) mEtEIE L HER o BIRKHETT
zieERBEITEAREARKESRH
RIK® o

TEBEHFAL
HE2022F3A31BILEE AEE
2SR EREFALTBEIEIZRES (2021
F3REE)  HEZHES K34
BE -BABTREAT B
(2021 F - MBAAL)WT :

2022 2021

2022 F 2021 4

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FERT FET

Salaries and allowances Fre MOERL 6,736 6,036

Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 2,620 2,729
Retirement benefit - defined contribution RIRE R — E R RGTE

schemes 18 _

9,374 8,765

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

24 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
(Cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Cont'd)
The number of non-directors with emoluments fell within the following

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

HEMBRENE (B)

24 EERFMX (BRESEHE) ()

(b) EEBEH AL (&)
FEEATZHMEETIHNHEZA

bands: Eg
2022 2021
2022 2021 4
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 7T & 4,500,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7% 7T £ 5,000,000 78 7T 1 1
2 2

(c) Senior management remuneration by band
The number of senior management with emoluments fell within the following

(c) BREEEFHEE
SREEBABEMEEENT

bands:
2022 2021
2022 2021
HK$500,001 — HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 7 7T & 1,000,000 7 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T 4 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 8 7T £ 2,500,000 7 7T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 JT 2 3,000,000 7 JT 2 2
HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 78 7C £ 3,500,000 7 7T 2 -
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 78 JC & 4,000,000 7 7T 2 2
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 78 7T 2 4,500,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7& 7T & 5,000,000 7 7T 1 1
14 1

Ay X
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MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SEMKBREMNE (E)

25 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 25 MBWA KA
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Finance income: BRI
- Bank interest income —RITFBHA 4,876 5,297
— Net foreign exchange gain on cash and —BHekReFHEELMEL KRS
cash equivalents FEE 11,249 18,050
16125 23347
Finance costs: B
— Interest expense on bank loans —ROTEFRMEHXL (11,382) (10,368)
— Net foreign exchange loss on bank loans —RITERMIE X EEFE (7,928) (1,470)
- Interest expenses arising from lease liabilites —THEBEEAMNF S (1,565) (1,550)
— Imputed interest of provision for —(BERABEEE S
reinstatement cost (1,100) (1,184)
SO — | (21,975) (14,572)
Net finance (cost)/income B RS (A AS), WA R B (5,850) 8,775
26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 26 FIEBLRA X
The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam. Hong REEBHNES PEREENEH -
Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) on the FENF T T F R hFH R T a AR
estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC enterprise income tax has been 16.5% (2021 4F : 16.5%) 2 Bl A H B4 -
provided for at the rate of 25% (2021: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits H B R PTSHE Th BE A A ST B R BR
for the year. Vietnam enterprise income tax has been provided for at the rate of F 7 25% (2021 FF : 25% ) 2 Bt = E H #
20% (2021: 20%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. Macau enterprise %o MEMEMER DR FE AT ER
income tax has been provided for at the rate of 12% (2021: 12%) on the estimated TR FIIE 20% (2021 5 : 20%) Z B R B L
assessable profits for the year. Bis - BRPIEMMER IR F NG TR
SRBLE FIIE 129% (2021 F 1 12%) 2 RiRAE
M -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)
The Group’s subsidiary in the PRC is entitled to an additional deduction on certain
expenses for which the expenses is incurred in the profit or loss by the Company
in the course of carrying out manufacturing activities.

The Group’s subsidiary in Vietnam is entitled to tax holiday and the profits are fully

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

HEMBRENE (B)

26 FSBIEAX ()

MBEN

AEBEETFENMBRARAEZEHEIN
BE TR  ZERXTIHEARE
HERRSGETBMNBREPNIBRES

AEERBENNBEARZRLHE

exempted from Vietnam enterprise income tax for two years starting from its first KB E—FENEEERZ BEEE

year of profitable operations, which is the financial year ended 31 March 2017,
after offsetting prior year tax losses, followed by 50% reduction in CIT in next four
years, until 2023 fiscal year.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

represents:

MEE (BNEZE2017F3A831HIEGH B
FE)RFME  m5M T2 BARMME

EMEH  MzBONFZH0%0%E
SRR ®  BEE2030HEE -

REEABRRRINBZMERSER

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FET

Current income tax BN ERFR1S 7%
- Hong Kong profits tax —BAFER 20,881 53,949
— Overseas income tax —BINERIS TR 34,093 36,076
Deferred tax (Note 19) RIERIE (52 19) 11,858 13,001
66,832 103,026

BEARGHBERERDA

2021/2022 F3§

Ay X
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

26 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’'d)
The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits

HEMBRENE (B)

26 FifEHipAx (M)
A £2 B AT 15 A5 At 1) 2 0 TR B 4258
R A BEEN 2 MEF IR EGFEZ

of the consolidated entities as follows: BReBIEENAT -
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET FH&T
Profit before income tax P 15 54 Al s 1 646,067 838,365
Less: Vo
Associates results reported net of tax BEENF 2 2WMEE(CTEH) (34,890) (40,647)
611,177 797,718
Tax calculated at weighted average domestic REARAERERDEER 2
tax rate applicable to profits in respective FM A EGTE 2R
jurisdictions 95,588 144,520
Income not subject to tax BERB A (1,735) (21,814
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR X 3,312 2,346
Tax concession B E =R (24,074) (23,182)
Previously unrecognised tax loss LRIARBER MG EE (2,559) -
Other unrecognised temporary difference HMABRERER (16,238) (5,720)
Tax on certain undistributed retained profitofa M B 2A & MEt & QA A1HE T A DK
subsidiary and associates R Az 1A 12,538 6,876
66,832 103,026

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.6% (2021: 18.1%). The change in
weighted average applicable tax rate is due to a change in the profitability of the
Group's subsidiaries in the respective countries.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 12021 /2022 Annual Report

MEFIEAB B EAB156% (2021 F :
18.1%) o MAEFHEARELEFH THE R
SENBRARESBBERMABFEE %
EECFTER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

27 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) Basic

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

HEMBRENE (B)

27 BREBF

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to

equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares in

issue, excluding treasury shares, during the year.

(a) &
BREABFIEADNREEEE AR
1555 FIBR R B 31T R 19 INAE S35 2K
(TBREEFRM)GE -

2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FTERT FHEIT
Profit attributable to equity holders of the RABIERFSE ARG RT

Company 572,677 721,491

Weighted average number of shares in issue BEITIRMINETHE (FR)
(thousands) 1,411,208 1,411,218
Basic earnings per share (HKS per share) BREREFN (FRAT) 0.41 0.51

(b) Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average

number of ordinary shares in issue to assume conversion of all dilutive

potential ordinary shares. The Company has share options to employees for

years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

Since the average market price of the Company’s shares during the year is less

than the assumed exercise price of the share options, the potential ordinary

shares were not included in the calculation of the diluted earnings per share

as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, diluted earnings per
share for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 is the same as basic

earnings per share of the respective year.

(b) B8
SREERFINRE LG BT
EERRMAED BT ERZ INE
FHHEHE - REE2022F £ 2021
FIANHLEFERARBIBRIES
TH AR 4 -

ARARB RGO RFEANNFEmE
ERERERRITEE BUiTES
BREFRASTEAABEHEYL
B AAFAZERDSER RS
S o WU B E 202246 K 2021 3 A
STELEFENSRESRFEERER
FEMNBREARFER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

28 DIVIDENDS 28 BRE

Interim dividend paid of HK$21 cents BIRAMBEE 2111z B 8
(2021: HK$22 cents) (Note (i) (2021 4 = B 2210) (BFEEG) 296,353 310,466
Proposed final dividend of HK$14 cents FORAABEE 1400 2 REARR B
(2021: HK$22 cents) (Note (i) (2021 4 : B 224L) (BFE ) 197,569 310,466
493,922 620,932
Notes: M 5E -

(i) On 25 November 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors declared an interim
dividend of HK$21 cents per share (2021: HK$22 cents) for the six-month period
ended 30 September 2021. The amount was paid in December 2021.

(i) On 23 June 2022, the Company's Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK$14 cents (2021: HK$22 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March 2022. This
proposed dividend has not been reflected as dividend payable in the consolidated
financial statements as at 31 March 2022.

Pacific Textiles'HoIdings Limited

atis &

() M2021F11 A28 KARREERE
TR ZE 202198308 17518 A E R
R HARS B R B B 211l (2021 5 - B
224l1) R EFIBEE R 2021 F 12 X -

(i) M2022FE6 8238 ARAEERE
EEREZE20202F3ANHEHLEFER
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fil) o 3R 5 A% B #8 7 2022 F 3 A 31
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) ,lv'\é\ﬂji‘%iﬁima (&)
29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 29 MEBRERERMKE
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) BEEEZER®
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FAT
Profit before income tax BT 15 %4 Al i F) 646,067 838,365
Adjustments for: NT&IEZHE -
Share of profits of associates DG E R R 2 A (34,890) (40,647)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% » E RREITE 180,461 175,070
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 6,349 5,356
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and i ’%%% B R ik e 2 1R
equipment (Uras) 565 (97,654)
Share-based compensation expense ARty BERE 2 Ble X i 585 584
Reversal of provision for slow-moving and T RREF S RER R FE
obsolete inventories, net (34,905) (17,607)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment loss of FEMRBE X CRiERER),RE K 1B
trade receivables (366) 5,396
Net fair value gain on derivative financial TESBRIAEAABERZFE
instruments - (14,921)
Finance income IR L ON (16,125) (23,347)
Finance costs B 78 PR AR 21,975 14,572
Operating profit before working capital changes & @ﬁ% LBl B 2 48 & i A 769,716 845,167
Decrease/(increase) in inventories sREL,Em) 64,618 (72,026)
Increase in trade and bills receivables J,TEE\HQEE?A eSS (73,770) (126,954)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments and other e - B RIB R E M B FRIE
receivables L 14,005 2,533
Decrease in amounts due from associates JE W Bt i N R R IR R 4 11,217 16,937
Change in derivative financial instruments PTESRT A 12,155 (4,228)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables — FEfTBRF L ZE CR 4 ), 1840 (132,649) 72,926
Decrease in accruals and other payables FEETIE B K H fth & - 5B R (29,912) (28,206)
Cash generated from operations EEELECZES 635,380 706,149
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposals of (b) RFEHRERERAN HEFHEE
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment comprise: ERVE BERZEMBSRES
b
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Net book amount of property, plant and M WEREFEREDFE
equipment 2,410 5,204
Net book amount of right-of-use assets FREEERTFE = 1,473
(Loss)/gain on disposal of right-of-use assets and I EFFREEERWE  BE L&
property, plant and equipment #z (E18) M (565) 97,654

Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets and HEFAEEERNE  BE K&
property, plant and equipment ERIESE O] 1,845 104,331
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

29 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)
(c) Reconciliation of net debt in financing activities

29 RERERBRMEE (B
(0 MEZHEBFHERYIK

150

As at 1 April 2020 R20205481H 125,049 737,190 1,144 863,383
New bank borrowings MERITEE - 457,665 - 457,665
Repayment of bank borrowings BRETEE - (550,882) - (550,882)
Addition of leases MEng - - 91,082 91,082
Accrued interest JEZTFI S - - 1,550 1,550
Payment for lease liabilities TRHESE - - (52,445) (52,445)
Exchange currency alignment EHAR 326 1470 (114) 1,682
As at 31 March 2021 R2021%53831H 125,375 645,443 41,217 812,035
As at 1 April 2021 R2021%54810 125,375 645,443 41,217 812,035
New bank borrowings MERITEE - 1,336,981 - 1,336,981
Repayment of bank borrowings BRHETEE - (537,767) - (537,767)
Addition of leases MERg - - 2,079 2,079
Accrued interest JEZTFI S - - 1,565 1,565
Payment for lease liabilities INHEAE - - (8,811) (8811)
Exchange currency alignment A E 843 9,026 (935) 8,934
As at 31 March 2022 R2022%3831H 126,218 1,453,683 35,115 1,615,016

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

nnual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30 AEEE
At 31 March 2022, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2021: Nil). MR2022F3A318 AEEWEE KK

BEEQ21F &) -

For contingent liabilities relating to associates, please refer to Note 9. BB ERNR X EABRLMME -
31 COMMITMENTS 31 A&E
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet REERBETHEMAREEZBARH
incurred is as follows: ST

Contracted but not provided for: BRI HE KRB -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KRB 264,265 171,668
At 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any significant share of capital B2022F3 8318 AEBILESD
commitments of its associates (2021: Nil). HE & R RE A EARE AR E (2021
Fom|m) -

(b) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor (b) BREHENRE-—FEBERHAA
The future aggregate minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable R AR A AT RS A5 i A 40 PR U A R 2R %
operating leases are as follows: BEHESHELBOT -

As lessor: EREMEA
Not later than 1 year T F 341 322
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years HBiE1FENERSF 125 198

466 520 y
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION V-
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 EEEALTRS
Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control, jointly control or EBEATIEAERNIES - BE TS
exert significant influence over the other party in holding power over the investee; FE T S B Al SRR B TR T
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and WATITTHEERTENNALT  BRE
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s RETEEELBEWIREF A EER
returns. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common B R B sk F B A T AT F R H
control or joint control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities. BREFHNENZBEREEDRSEHA

T o XA S E R B AL TR
BREBE - FREALTAR/BEASE

fthE 88 o
The directors are of the view that the following entities were related parties that %% R TIHIERBARFANGHEAEHE
had transactions or balances with the Group during the year. ETRGKEEEARZBEBAEANT -
Name Relationship with the Group
=% BEAKEZBE
Toray Industries, Inc. A substantial shareholder
FERRE
Teejay Lanka PLC An associate
g 2 )
SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. An associate
FIER(BMN) ABEHBERERAR Bt & 2 7
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENBHRRME ()

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd) 32 FEBEATRS ()
(a) The following transactions were carried out with related parties: (a) EEREALTETZRBOT ¢
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FHEIT
Sales of goods HEE M
— Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (ii)) —Toray Industries, Inc. (Fff &% (i) 34,974 34,719
Purchase of materials BEMR
- Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (i) —Toray Industries, Inc. (I 3% (i) 70,733 128,780
Rental income HEWA
- SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. (Note (iii)) —(EIEK(EM) REHBESR
AR~ E) (B EE i) 3,020 2,860
Sub-contracting income KA
- SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. (Note (ii)) —(ETEKR(EIN) B E R
BEAR (HFE@) 412 3,200
Handling income BEEWA
~ Teejay Lanka PLC (Note (iv)) ~Teejay Lanka PLC (B 3£ (iv)) 880 875
- Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (iv)) —Toray Industries, Inc. (Fff 5E (iv)) 278 -
1,158 875
Commission paid for services REBEAXAREE
— Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (v)) —Toray Industries, Inc. (Fff 5 (v)) 12 5
Royalty fee A E
— Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (v)) —Toray Industries, Inc. (i 5 (v)) 1 31

Dividend income received from associates EREBE AT RE®RA

— Teejay Lanka PLC -Teejay Lanka PLC 15,164 13,417
- SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. —ETIEXR(BM) TEHBER
LN 7,543 7,229
22,707 20,646
Notes: MfaE
() Goods are purchased at prices mutually agreed by the Group and the (i) /5 SN ESERERIEAER

substantial shareholder in the ordinary course of business. TEREHRBEZ BIRET -

" »(b\:l”\' B Akl 32 o
(i) Goods are sold and sub-contracting income are received at prices mutually (i) Har iSRS BRATER B RIEBIE

agreed by the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course of business. EH?%E%EEﬁEagAi#\EWEEZE
& AT B R -

(ili) Rental income is determined based on the size of the property and the (i) WA TEREEELEERTISE
relevant market rate. BET o

g
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEH

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(a) The following transactions were carried out with related parties: (Cont’d)

(c)

HEMBRENE (B)

32 BEREALRS (M)

(iv) Handling fee received from an associate is charged at 2% to 3% of the value

of certain purchases made as an agent of the associate, and the rates of the

handling fee were mutually agreed by both parties.

(v) Commission and royalty fee are paid at prices mutually agreed by the Group

and the substantial shareholder in the ordinary course of business.

(@) BEEREATETZIZNT (&)
v) [A)— [ HE 2 A R R R T2 B A = 2A

EAREERNRIRIE AETE TIRE
HBEZ 2% 3% URE - MEIEE
Ry EH LRHRE -

) BERFFFEIIEARE ST R

KRR ABEBBRETARBENE
AT o

(b) Year-end balances (b) EXR&E R
2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THET T T
Amount due from SPM Automotive Textiles Co.  EUET B K (EIN) AEBEHE
Ltd. for sub-contracting income and rental mARAT D BWAREREA
income 941 891
Trade in nature: BEo54HE
Amount due from Teejay Lanka PLC arising from B & E & @ E £ 2 8 W Teejay
purchase of goods on behalf Lanka PLC 5K 18 447 11,714
Amount due from Toray Industries, Inc. arising ERRHEEEREE ZE W Toray
from sales of goods on behalf Industries, Inc. 53X 18 8,037 1,531
8,484 13,245
Trade in nature: E51E
Amount due to Toray Industries, Inc. arising from B §& B #1 £ & & 2 & { Toray
purchase of materials Industries, Inc. ;X 8 4,149 43,763
Key management compensation (0 TREBAEMS
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT T T
Salaries, bonus and allowances e feARORR 70,596 68,809
Retirement benefits — defined contribution ROKEFI— F BB G 8
schemes 123 126
70,719 68,935

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

HEMBRENE (B)

MBEN

BALARNEERBRERABZED

Balance sheet of the Company ARARAEEEER
2022 2021
2022 F 2021 4
HKS$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FE T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries LB NGIPA - F 1,478,297 1,478,297
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries Al NGIE S 1,308,222 1,577,898
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHER 25,690 19,824
. 1,333912 1,597,722
Total assets EEHE 2,812,209 3,076,019
EQUITY R
Share capital [N 1,411 1,411
Share premium B 19 ' B 1,303,246 1,303,246
Reserves R 1,042,406 841,604
2,347,063 2,146,261
LIABILITIES g8E&
Current liabilities RBAE
Borrowings BE 298,697 296,702
Accruals and other payables FERHIE B KOE (< 3RIE 4,353 4,582
Amounts due to subsidiaries JETHI B R R 5RIE 162,096 628,474
e eeeme e e e e eenaen e enmeeneeenneenmen e eeeenmeenmennmeenmeeeneeneeeeeeeenmeeeeeneeeeeeeeee 465,146 929758
Total liabilites  _ ®f&E#®w® 465146 929758
Total equity and liabilities EEkaERER 2,812,209 3,076,019

The balance sheet of the Company has been approved by the Board of Directors
on 23 June 2022 and has been signed on behalf.

Masaru Okutomi
RER
Director

EZE

ARBEEBERE N 202296 A23
AEEERMAETHIUNTEERRE

2o

Tou Kit Vai
HER

Director

EZFE

BEARGHBERERDA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)
Reserve movement of the Company

33 ARAEERERRHEZES (B)
RATREZEY

At 1 April 2020 R20205481H 13,555 994,642 11 1,008,208
Profit for the year B3l - 397,295 - 397,295
Share-based compensation expense DR BEM 2 #e = H 584 - - 584
Repurchase of shares BE KRG - (24) 24 -
2019/2020 final dividends 2019/2020F R ERR B - (254,017) - (254,017)
2020/2021 interim dividends 2020/2021 EFRERE - (310,466) - (310,466)
At 31 March 2021 M2021F3H31H 14139 827,430 35 841,604
Representing: ®R:
Proposed final dividend (Note 28) e ARBRE (M) 310,466
Others Hitr 516,964
827,430
At 1 April 2021 W20215481H 14,139 827,430 35 841,604
Profit for the year FEEF - 807,036 - 807,036
Share-based compensation expense DR BER B e H 585 = = 585
Lapse of share options BRELN (32) 32 = =
2020/2021 final dividends 20202021 ERBRE - (310,466) - (310,466)
2021/2022 interim dividends 202172022 FHRERRR B - (296,353) - (296,353)
At 31 March 2022 2022538310 14,692 1,027,679 35 1,042,406
Representing: ®R:
Proposed final dividend (Note 28) BEABRE (H28) 197,569
Others Hih 830,110
1,027,679

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

34 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the Company

by the Group are as follows:

The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHEN

RENHRRME (R)

3 EERBEETHRAEZ#HME
EERBETBRAEZHS
AEBEER BNRAREZZHER
BT

HZE202F3A3BLEFE SEF2
BT

Executive directors HTES

Masaru Okutomi (Chief executive officer) B & B (17 BLAEEL) 1,000 3,433 = 4,433

Wan Wai Loi FEK 1,500 17,352 - 18,852

Tou Kit Vai A5 R 1,000 3,895 18 4,913

Toshiya Ishii BB 833 2,272 = 3,105

Kyuichi Fukumoto ‘LR — 167 339 = 506

Non-executive directors (note) FEHITES (M)

Lau Yiu Tong 2EE - - - -

Independent non-executive directors B FHITES

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael PR A8 263 - - 263

Ng Ching Wah hiB%E 263 = = 263

Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel it =S 263 - - 263
5,289 27,291 18 32,598

BEAGEBERERAT | 2021/2022 ﬁ#ﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BEMBRRM (F)

34 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont’d) 34 EERERTHRABZHME (&)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont’d) EEREETHRABRZHME (&)
The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows: HE2021F3ANALEFE STEEZ
BT -

Executive directors HITESE

Wan Wai Loi (Chief executive officer) FER(FTHEE) 1,500 21673 - 23,173
Masaru Okutomi BE B 1,000 3,308 - 4308
Tou Kit Vai A 1,000 4013 18 5,031
Toshiya Ishii BB 1,000 2,371 - 3,371
Non-executive director (note) FHITEE (M)

Lau Yiu Tong 2p= - - - -

Independent non-executive directors B I FEHITESE

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael B8 250 - - 250
Ng Ching Wah hiB%E 250 - - 250
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel Mo 48 250 - - 250
5,250 31,365 18 36,633
Note: Mr. Lau has waived any emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. MiaE o Bl PEEE 2022 F 22021 F

3A3THLEFEMNERAMS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MEH

HEMBRENE (B)

35 REFE->HNESBMI A

2022 2021
2022 F 20214
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FERT FET
Financial assets STREE
Financial assets at amortised cost REENAVNENSREE
Trade and bills receivables JE B R e R AR 945,591 863,552
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables B - TB R I H h fE Y 5k IE 4,943 10,379
Short-term bank deposits RHRITER - 11,323
Cash and cash equivalents RekBHeEEER 1,545,128 946,152
Amount due from associate JiE Ui Bt N R FRIE 1,388 12,605
Financial assets at fair value through other BAABEF AEMEERE
comprehensive income TRMEE 427 853
Financial assets at fair value through EBARBFABENEREE
profit or loss 44,018 15,437
2,541,495 1,860,301
Financial liabilities - 8=Ri
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEAAINENSRAERE
Trade and bills payables e BR R R BB 592,691 718,617
Accruals and other payables FEFHIE B K H h fE 58 37,330 46,660
Borrowings BE 1,579,901 770,818
Lease liabilities HEAE 35,115 41,217
Financial liabilities at fair value through BEARBFABZNEREE
profit or loss - 3,282
2,245,037 1,580,594

ERFHERERAT | 2021/2022 F5;
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MERR

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

CEES

Revenue 'ON 6,066,310 5,384,897 5,476,196 6,119,081 6,098,153

Gross profit EF 776,318 861,689 924,578 1,060,901 947,162

Profit attributable to: THATEEER :

Equity holders of the Company AR AIHERFHAE A 572,677 721,491 743,489 861,780 744,035

Non-controlling interests FE 2 i) 1 6,558 13,848 24,440 8,479 (20,693)
579,235 735,339 767,929 870,259 723,342

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

RREERRR

Non-current assets FERBEE 2,124,390 2,068,692 1,912,357 2,001,296 2,046,372
Current assets MBEE 3,819,804 3,142,672 2,900,817 2,528,941 2,806,338
Total assets EESLE 5,944,194 5,211,364 4,813,174 4,530,237 4,852,710
Current liabilities mBBE 2,261,676 1,624,654 1,613,402 1,051,550 1,311,037
Total assets less current liabilities B E & ER RSB E 3,682,518 3,586,710 3,199,772 3,478,687 3,541,673
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 251,994 233,085 202,716 209,048 200,811
Total equity AT 3,430,524 3,353,625 2,977,056 3,269,639 3,340,862
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,558,128 1,518,018 1,287,415 1,477,391 1,495,301
Equity attributable to: THIA T B
Equity holders of the Company ZANAGEZEFH A 3,419,125 3,337,921 2,985,924 3,279,611 3,357,578
Non-controlling interests JEPZE I 1 A 2 11,399 15,704 11,132 (9,972) (16,716)
3,430,524 3,353,625 2,997,056 3,269,639 3,340,862

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limite

nnual Report



SCHEDULE OF GROUP’S PROPERTIES
ARENE-BER

As at 31 March 2022 M2022%3 A31H

PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWN USE HIEBRAWME
Property Description Lot Number Type Lease Term
S R i B R 5% Rl FH
Hong Kong
i
Unit B1,B3 on 7/F and The property comprises unit BT and B3 on  Kwai Chung Town Lot No. 143 Industrial/Office The property is held for a term
Car Parking Space (No.39) the 7th floor together with a car parking of 99 years from 1 July 1898

on G/F Eastern Sea Industrial and renewed to 30 June 2047.

Building, 29/39 Kwai Cheong

space on the ground floor. The property
has saleable area of approximately 1,568

Rd. & 48/56 Tai Lin Pai Rd. sg.m.

Kwai Chung NT

HREE TMEREEBRBE  BRMTE ZETMHRE 43R I%/HR% ZMERI1893F7 A1 AME

EER 29395 R B BMENERERN 568 FAK RERHVE WEELRE

REHE 48/56 57 2047F6A308 ¢

FEIERE

8181 B3ER

T EEM(F39%)

Mainland China

it

Liu Chong Tong Xin County, ~ The property comprises several factory Lot No.  21-0664 Industrial The land use right (Lot No. :

Wan Qing Sha Town Nansha,  buildings, warehouses, sewage treatment Lot No. : 4401151002080125 21-0664) is held for a term up

Guangzhou City plants, electric heating plants, office Lot No. * 4401151002080126 to 11 June 2048.

Guangdong Province, PRC buildings, dormitories, production facilities

(Pacific Textiles Industrial City) and environmental facilities. The total land The land use rights (Lot

area is around 421,523 sq.m. No. © 4401151002080125 &

4401151002080126) are held
for a term up to 17 October
2061.

H TWERREEERE  BE TKEE WRESR  21-0664 I% T30 A1 GhER GRS -

ERE B BRE BAR BE AERE BERES  4401151002080125 21-0664) 1575 HIR & 2048 F

B RIRREH - L IARENH42153F B 4401151002080126 6A1A .

B BEDE ke y

7R R B TR AECLRET

(EXIEH) 4401151002080125 &2
4401151002080126) 5 5 HiR q
Z2061E10R178 L 2

ERFHERERAT | 2021/2022 F5;
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SCHEDULE OF GROUP’S PROPERTIES

AEREYE-BR

As at 31 March 2022

Property
LE

Vietnam

i)

Land Lot CN9, CN11 and CN12,
Lai Vu Industrial Zone, Lai Vu
Commune, Kim Thanh district,
Hai Duong Province

Lai Vu Industrial Zone, Lai Vu
Commune, Kim Thanh district,
Hai Duong Province

CN9 ~ CNT1 R CN123t B

Lot K1, Rang Dong Garment
and Textiles Industrial Zone,
Nghia Hung District, Nam Dinh

Province
Rang Dong Garment and
Hung District, Nam Dinh

Province
K1 Bk

Description

R

The property mainly comprises factory

buildings and warehouses. The total land

area is around 308,504 sq.m.

Lot Number

s B A 5

Lot CN9, CN11 and CN12

TMEISORERERRE - LLHE CNO~ CNTTRON12HBER
TE#) A308,504F 7K o

The project of construction is in progress.

The total land area is around 312,000 sg.m.

Lot K1

GREFAETETT  BTHMEREL KR
Textiles Industrial Zone, Nghia  £312,000F /5 5 °

R2022F3A31H

Type
ki

Industrial

I%

Industrial

T%

Lease Term

£

The land use right is held for a
term up to 12 January 2054.

THFERESEHRE
2054F 18128

The land use right is held for a
term up to 30 June 2065.

THP AR B IR 2 2065
F6A308

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited |
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In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor's Report and Financial

Information), unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall

have the following meanings:

“2022 Financial Year”

AGM”

“Articles”

“Board”

"CG Code”" or "Corporate
Governance Code”

“China”or “PRC"

"Company”

“Director(s)”

"Group”

“HKD" or “S”Or “HKS”

"HKSAR" or "Hong Kong”

"INED(s)"

"Listing Rules” or “Main Board
Listing Rules”

"L KR" or “RS”"

“Model Code”

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Annual General Meeting of the Company

The Articles of Association of the Company, as
amended from time to time

The Board of Directors of the Company

The Corporate Governance Code, stated in the
Appendix 14 to the Main Board Listing Rules

The People’s Republic of China

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Cayman Islands with
limited liability, the Shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange

The Director(s) of the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong Dollar

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China

The Independent Non-executive Director(s) of the
Company

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, as amended from time to
time

Sri Lankan Rupee
Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers, Appendix 10 to the
Main Board Listing Rules

GLOSSARY
SHAR

$A 4 48 70 (37 2 BT 3R 5 BB 7 B
o) RIEXEBEAE - TIIAEEAMN
Ta%:

RONETHFE] HE2002F3A318IFE

[RRBFRE] ARAZERBEFAE
[Ei24R ] ARATHER 2B =R
Anal

(E=R) ARRZEER

[eEERTA] ETRETRAMETOME
ZBEERTR

[ B REARLNE

[RAE] EAHBERAERAF - —
IR S B B aE i AL 2 &
HeBRQA - ERORE
RFr BT

(&= ARRIZEZR

[A&E)] ARBREMEAF

B BT

(&%) FEARKMBEERFIT
B

[BYFMITES] ARARAZBUFNTES

[ETRAIKIE ST ETZHRAES L

R LEmARA MR Al
[HEMREL] HEHFEL

[ 27 A R EMMRRIM A LT E
TAESETEFRHHOE

&8

EXRBHEERERART | 2021/2022 F3;{ 163



164

GLOSSARY
SHAR

"Panyu Plant”

"RMB" or “CNY”
"SEQ”

“Shares”

“Shareholder(s)”

“Share Option Scheme”

"Stock Exchange”

“Teejay Lanka PLC"

“Toray”

"USD” or "USS”

"ND"

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

the factory run by Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited
located in Nansha of Guangzhou City, the PRC

“Renminbi/Chinese Yuan”

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong)

Shares of the Company, with a nominal value of
HK$0.001 each

The Company’s Shareholder(s)

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company pursuant to the written resolutions of
Shareholders passed on 27 April 2007, and expired
on 17 May 2017

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Teejay Lanka PLC (formerly known as Textured
Jersey Lanka PLC and Textured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of Sri Lanka and
whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock
Exchange of Sri Lanka

Toray Industries, Inc., a company incorporated
under the laws of Japan and whose shares are
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange in Japan, a
substantial Shareholder of the Company

United States Dollar

Vietnamese Dong

2021 /2022 Annual Report

[ 7 8 ReEEMTESEEA
(HBB) B LAERARE
B I

[ANRE] NS

[EHRBMERN] BHERBEED (BEEH
F571%)

[R5 ] RNRAREFREE001ET
Z B

[R5 ] RAaZ R

[EERRERT 2] D ER AR B 7 2007 £ 4
AVBBBZEEREER
Rinz ElREE - BER
20175 B17EEM

[ 22 7 | BEEBARDERRAA

[Teejay Lanka PLC] Teejay Lanka PLC (A 1%
Textured Jersey Lanka PLC
K Textured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited) * —FE1RIE
WERREREMKIZE
RAE - ERORIAEER

RBHR %X 5 B £

[Toray] Toray Industries, Inc. » — &
BERRERFMEILZA
fERORBARAES
RGHMET BREARFEZ
—HZETERR

[%E7] EY

[BEE] HEE
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